
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING
August 1, 2017–8:30 a.m.

Escambia County Central Office Complex
3363 West Park Place, Room 104

             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the July 10, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for July 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for August 2017.
 

5. Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.  
 

7. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   Case #: Z-2017-06
Applicant: Floyd Peacock, Agent for New Birth Baptist Church, Owner
Address: 1703 N Q Street
Property Size: 0.46 (+/-) acres
From: MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)
To: HDR, High Density Residential district (18 du/acre)

 

B.   Case #: Z-2017-11
Applicant: Tom Hammond, Agent for William R. Smith, Owner



Address: 7237 Mobile Highway
Property Size: 4.3 (+/-) acres
From: LDR, Low Density Residential district (four du/acre)
To: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)

 

C.   Case #: Z-2017-12
Applicant: Micheal W. Milner, Agent for Richard Mertins, Owner
Address: 2410 Langley Avenue
Property
Size:

0.82 (+/-) acres

From: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)
To: HC/LI-NA, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district,

prohibiting the subsequent establishment of any microbreweries,
microdistillerires, microwineries, bars, nightclubs, or adult
entertainment uses (25 du/acre)

 

D.   Case #: Z-2017-13
Applicant: Hattie M. McGary, Owner
Address: 105 Louis Street
Property Size: 0.17 (+/-) acres
From: LDR, Low Density Residential district (four du/acre)
To: LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district (seven du/acre)

 

8. Discussion Items.  
 

A.   Zoning/FLU Inconsistencies Discussion.
 

B.   Clustering Discussion.
 

C.   Spot Zoning/Rezoning Discussion.
 

D.   Subdivision Roads and Site Plans Discussion.
 

E.   Storage Containers Discussion.
 

9. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  

Agenda Item:
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the July 10, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for July 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for August 2017.

Attachments
Draft July 10, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes
Draft July 10, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



D R A F T
RESUMÉ OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD QUASI-JUDICIAL

REZONING
 July 10, 2017

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:31 A.M. – 8:40 A.M)

(8:48 A.m. - 10:06 A.M.)
Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Eric Fears   
Absent: Timothy Pyle
  Edwin Howard
  Patty Hightower
  William Clay
  Stephen Opalenik
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given by Wayne Briske.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the June 6, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning
Meeting.

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 



  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the June 6, 2017
Rezoning Planning Board Meeting. 

  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

5.  Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to accept the Rezoning Planning Board meeting packet
for July 10, 2017. 

  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

6.  Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

7.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     Case #: Z-2017-07
Applicant: Brett & Susan Ward and

Burton & Katherine Ward,
Owners

Address: 5700 Pine Forest Rd
Property
Size:

2.5 (+/-) acres

From: Agr, Agricultural district
(one du/20 acres)

To: RR, Rural Residential
district (one du/four acres)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site.

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item.

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept the Staff's Findings of Fact. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept as Staff recommended and forward to the
BCC. 



  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

B.     Case #: Z-2017-08
Applicant: Kerry Anne Schultz,

Agent for Douglas E.
Dormer, Agent for Owners

Address: 4200 Blk of Spanish Trail
and 4224 Creighton Rd

Property
Size:

0.19 (+/-) acres and 0.25
(+/-) acres

From: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial
and Light Industrial district
(25 du/acre, lodging unit
density not limited by
zoning)

To: HDMU, High Density
Mixed-use district (25
du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest. 

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept Staff's Findings of Fact. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approve and forward to the BCC. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

C.     Case #: Z-2017-09
Applicant: Buddy Page, Agent for

Tony Perez, Owner
Address: 703 Beverly Parkway
Property
Size:

0.10 +/- acres

From: MDR, Medium Density
Residential district (10
du/acre)

  



To: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial
and Light Industrial district
(25 du/acre, lodging unit
density not limited by
zoning)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest. 

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept Staff's Findings of Fact. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval and forward to the BCC. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

D.     Case #: Z-2017-10
Applicant: Buddy Page, Agent for

Zenaida Palacios, Owner
Address: 5200 Burlington Rd
Property
Size:

0.18 (+/- acres)

From: MDR, Medium Density
Residential district (10
du/acre)

To: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial
and Light Industrial district
(25 du/acre, lodging unit
density not limited by
zoning)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest. 

  

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to accept Applicant Exhibit 1. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 



 
Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept the applicant's request to withdraw case. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

8.  Adjournment.
 



D R A F T
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 July 10, 2017

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:40 A.M. – 8:48 A.M.)
(10:15 A.M. - 11:48 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Eric Fears   
Absent: Timothy Pyle
  Edwin Howard
  Patty Hightower
  William Clay
  Stephen Opalenik
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Griffin Vickery, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved



 
Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the June 6, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for June 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for July 2017.

  

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the June 6, 2017
Regular Planning Board Meeting. 

  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

5.  Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept the July 10, 2017 Regular Planning Board
meeting packet. 

  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

6.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioner (BCC) for adoption, an ordinance amending the Future Land
Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale Amendment, SSA-2017-03.

  

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 



  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept recommendation and to forward to the BCC. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

B.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-01

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, a Small Scale Map Amendment,
SSA-2017-01, amending Part II of the Escambia County Code of
Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, as amended;
amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map designation.

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept Applicant Exhibit 1 into evidence. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend acceptance with provision of the
historical significant site be addressed in writing by competent authority,
and forward to the BCC. 

  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

C.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-02

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, a Small Scale Map Amendment, SSA
2017-02, amending Part II of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances,
the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, as amended; amending the
Future Land Use (FLU) Map designation.

  



 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept Applicant Exhibit 1 into evidence. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to recommend acceptance with provision of the
historical significant site be addressed in writing by competent authority,
and forward to the BCC. 

  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

D.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 2, Section 2-5.7, Final Plats

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 2, Section 2-5.7, Final Plats.

  

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to accept amendment and forward to the BCC. 
  Vote: 4 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

7.  Action/Discussion/Info Items.
 

8.  Public Forum.

Ms. Jacqueline Rogers had questions and concerns regarding DRC
processes and public notifications.

 

9.  Director's Review.
 



10.  County Attorney's Report.
 

11.  Scheduling of Future Meetings.
 

 The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
August 1, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

12.  Announcements/Communications.
 

13.  Adjournment.
 



1 

 

 
Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  July 21, 2017 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for July 2017 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of July. 
Some items include information from previous months in cases where final disposition has not 
yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of report preparation 
date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial hearing on the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
Comp Plan Annual Report 
 06-06-17 PB recommended approval 
 07-06-17 BCC approved 
 

• Text Amendments: 

 

• Map Amendments: 

 
SSA-2017-01 

07-10-17 PB recommended approval 

08-03-17 BCC meeting 

 

SSA-2017-02 

07-10-17 PB recommended approval 

08-03-17 BCC meeting 

 

SSA-2017-03 

07-10-17 PB recommended approval 

08-03-17 BCC meeting 

 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE 

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 

PHONE: 850-595-3475 

FAX: 850-595-3481 

www.myescambia.com 



2 
 

 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
Dog Friendly Dining Ord 
06-06-17 PB recommended approval 
07-06-17 BCC approved 
 
Beach Mouse Assessment Ord 
06-06-17 PB recommended approval 
07-06-17 BCC approved 
 
Residential Uses in Zoning Districts 
09-6-16 PB recommended more review by staff 
  On hold – waiting for input from County Attorney’s Office 
 
OSP-2017-01 (formerly 2016-01) 
09-06-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC wanted to reschedule for DEO to be in attendance to meeting 
03-07-17 PB recommended approval 
03-16-17 BCC transmitted to DEO 
 
Spot Zoning 
12-06-16 PB dropped item and wanted more discussion 
 
Final Plat DWG Requirement 
07-10-17 PB recommended approval 
08-03-17 BCC meeting 
 
REZONING CASES 
 
1.     Rezoning Case Z-2017-05 

06-06-17 PB recommended approval 
07-06-17 BCC approved 

 
2.      Rezoning Case Z-2017-07 

07-10-17 PB recommended approval 
08-03-17 BCC meeting 

 
3.      Rezoning Case Z-2017-08 

07-10-17 PB recommended approval 
08-03-17 BCC meeting 

 
4.       Rezoning Case Z-2017-09 

07-10-17 PB recommended approval 
08-03-17 BCC meeting 

 
5.       Rezoning Case Z-2017-10 

07-10-17 PB approved applicants request to withdraw 
08-03-17 BCC meeting 

 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR AUGUST 2017 

(Revised 7/21/17)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing         T.H. = Transmittal Hearing          P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Tuesday, August 1, 2017   • Z-2017-06 

• Z-2017-11 

• Z-2017-12 

• Z-2017-13 

• Zoning/FLU 
Inconsistencies 

• Clustering 

• Storage Containers 

Tuesday, September 5, 2017  • SSA-2017-04 • Z-2017-04 

• Z-2017-14 

• Z-2017-15 

 

Tuesday, October 1, 2017     

Tuesday, November 7, 2017     

Tuesday, December 5, 2017     

Tuesday, January 2, 2018??     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current 
meeting agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 
 

** Residential Uses Ordinance – waiting on input from the County Attorney’s Office 
** Signs Ordinance – waiting on input from the BCC 
** CPA-2016-01 Extraction and Reclamation – on hold 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  
CASE : Z-2017-06
APPLICANT: Floyd Peacock, Agent for New Birth Baptist Church, Owner 

ADDRESS: 1703 N Q St 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 17-2S-30-1300-110-019
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 3  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: Brownsville 

BCC MEETING DATE: 09/07/2017 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)

TO: HDR, High Density Residential district (18 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the plan provisions

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  The Mixed-Use
Urban (MU-U) Future Land Use (FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of
residential and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill development and
the separation of urban and suburban land uses within the category as a whole. Range
of allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Light
Industrial, Recreational Facilities, Public and Civic. The maximum residential density is
25 dwelling units per acre.

↵



 FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and Industrial Future
Land Use categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to HDR is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use category MU-U as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The Comprehensive Plan allows
for residential and non-residential uses in urban areas and support development
compatible with the surrounding areas. The parcel will use the existing public roads,
utilities and service infrastructures to encourage development.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

LDC 3-3.4 Brownsville Overlay Purpose.  The Brownsville Overlay (Brn-OL) district
establishes supplemental land use regulations to support the objectives of the adopted
Brownsville area community redevelopment plan.  The intent of the additional land use
controls is to enhance the character of an area undergoing revitalization, support existing
commercial corridors, and protect the unique and historic character of the Brownsville
community.

LDC 3-2.7 Medium Density Residential district (MDR) 

Purpose.  The Medium Density Residential (MDR) district establishes appropriate
areas and land use regulations for residential uses at medium densities within
suburban or urban areas.  The primary intent of the district is to provide for
residential neighborhood development in an efficient urban pattern of
well-connected streets and at greater dwelling unit density than the Low Density
Residential district.  Residential uses within the MDR district are limited to
single-family and two-family dwellings.  The district allows non-residential uses that
are compatible with suburban and urban residential neighborhoods. 

a.

LDC 3-2.8 High Density Residential district (HDR).  

Purpose.  The High Density Residential (HDR) district establishes appropriate
areas and land use regulations for residential uses at high densities within urban
areas.  The primary intent of the district is to provide for residential neighborhood
development in an efficient urban pattern of well-connected streets and at greater
dwelling unit density and diversity than the Medium Density Residential district. 
Residential uses within the HDR district include most forms of single-family,
two-family and multi-family dwellings.  Non-residential uses within the district are
limited to those that are compatible with urban residential neighborhoods.

a.

Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the HDR district are limited to the following: 
Residential.1.

b.



Group living, excluding dormitories, fraternity and sorority houses, and residential
facilities providing substance abuse treatment, post-incarceration reentry, or similar
services.

a.

Manufactured (mobile) homes only within existing manufactured home parks or
subdivisions.  No new or expanded manufactured home parks or subdivisions.

b.

Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), attached or detached,
including townhouses and zero lot line subdivisions.

c.

Two-family and multi-family dwellings.d.

2.Retail sales.  No retail sales, except as conditional uses in this district.
3.Retail services. 

Boarding and rooming houses.a.
Child care facilities.b.

See also conditional uses in this district. 

Public and civic. Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers.4.

See also conditional uses in this district. 

Recreation and entertainment.5.

Marina, private.a.
Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.b.

See also conditional uses in this district. 

Industrial and related.  No industrial or related uses.6.
Agricultural and related.  Agricultural production limited to food primarily for
personal consumption by the producer, but no farm animals.  See also conditional
uses in this district.

7.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code.  The proposed zoning to HDR will allow for more intense residential
uses and density  The HDR zoning would allow for 18 dwelling units compared to the
ten dwelling units of the current MDR zoning.  The HDR zoning would provide the
similiar type of residential neighborhood development utilizing the existing street
connectivity with a slight increase in density. The parcel is within the Brownsville
Redevelopment Area and CRA has no comments as indicated by the letter attached.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses 
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities and conditions
and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such
that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all
permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS



FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts MDR,
HDMU and HC/LI never the less, there are single-family homes throughout the area and
one church.  HDR zoning will allow for multi-family, and will  increase the density from 10
dwelling units an acre to 18. Any new development must come through the Site Plan
Review Process.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions 
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment would not result in a logical and orderly development
pattern. The proposed amendment could introduce the multi-family component into the
area two-family and multi-family that could diminish the smaller individual lots and
increase density to 18 dwelling units per acre. 

Criterion f., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Effect on natural environment
Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not 
indicated on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan
Review process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse
impact on the natural environment.

Attachments
Working Case File



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2017-06 
 



W LEE S T

W LEE S T

N
I

ST

W AVERY ST

W LAKEVIEW AVE

W JACKSON ST

N 
V 

ST

W LEE ST

MA
TT

HE
W

LN
MI

SS
IO

N 
RD

N 
I S

T

W LA RUA ST

N 
Z 

ST

W MORENOST

HUNTER
AVEHARMONY

AVE

W MORENO ST

W LEONARD ST

N L ST

N
T

ST

GA
RY

AV
E

W SCOTT ST

W HERNANDEZ ST

W BLOUNT ST

W MALLORY ST
N

PA
C E

BL
VD

W LA
RUA ST

N H ST

MORRIS
CT

W CROSS ST

W LLOYD ST

W AVERY ST

N 
U 

ST

N 
N 

ST

N 
Y 

ST
N

X
ST

W LLOYD ST

N 
T 

ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

ST MARY AVE

W SCOTT ST

N 
S 

ST

LA
RR

Y
AV

E

B

O LANDPL

W BRAINERD ST

N 
R 

ST

W GONZALEZ ST

BAYOU DR

W BOBE STN
Q

ST

W HATTON ST

N 
U 

ST

W BAARS ST

W HATTONST

N
W

EN
TW

OR
TH

ST

W MAXWELLST
GARYCIR

N 
P 

ST

PL E A SANTA V E

W JORDAN ST

ST JOSEPH
AV E

W MAXWELL ST

MOBILE HWY

W BLOUNT ST N
K

ST

W CERVANTES ST

W GODFREY ST

N 
F 

ST

W CERVANTES ST

W BLOUNT ST

N
S

ST

ST CATHERINE AVE

W BELMONT ST

W CROSS ST

ST MARY AVE

N 
J 

ST

W DESOTO ST

W MALLORY ST

W STRONG ST

W CROSS ST

W GADSDEN ST

N 
Z 

ST

W WRIGHT ST

ST JOSEPHAVE

W LEONARD ST

SH
OE

MA
KE

R
ST W LEE ST

W SCOTT ST

W LARUA ST

N
G

ST

N 
J 

ST

W FISHER ST

W LEE ST

W BRAINERD ST

N
M

ST

N 
I

ST

N 
P 

ST

W MORENOST

W MALLORYST

N 
K 

ST

W MAXWELLST

N 
H 

ST

N
W

ST

N 
M 

ST

N
V

ST

N 
Q 

ST

N 
N 

ST

N 
R 

ST

W YONGE ST

N 
Y 

ST

N 
I

ST

W LLOYD ST

W HAYES ST

N 
L 

ST

N 
H 

ST

N 
I S

T

N
K

ST

N 
E 

STN 
G 

STN 
H 

ST

N 
R 

ST

W B L O U NT
S T

N 
Q 

ST

N 
G 

ST
N 

F 
ST

N 
I

ST

N 
X 

ST

N 
H 

ST

WFISHER
ST

JOHN
ST

LUKE ST

BAGGETT CT

BUDDYSLN

NJST

W BELMONT ST

IDLEWOOD DR

N 
L 

ST

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2017-06
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



W MORENOST

N 
R 

ST

N 
Q 

ST

N 
S 

ST

W MALLORYST

W BLOUNT ST

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI
MDR

HDMU

MDR

MDR MDR

MDR

MDR
MDR

W BLOUNT ST

N 
P 

ST

W GODFREY ST

N 
S 

ST

W AVERY ST

W MALLORYST

N 
Q 

ST
W MORENOST

N 
R 

ST

W GODFREY ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2017-06
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



W MORENOST

N 
R 

ST

N 
Q 

ST

N 
S 

ST

W MALLORYST

W BLOUNT ST

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-UMU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

W BLOUNT ST

N 
P 

ST

W GODFREY ST

N 
S 

ST
W AVERY ST

W MALLORYST

N 
Q 

ST
W MORENOST

N 
R 

ST

W GODFREY ST

W LEE ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2017-06
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



W MORENOST

N 
R 

ST

N 
Q 

ST

N 
S 

ST

W MALLORYST

W BLOUNT ST

CHURCH

SF
D

W BLOUNT ST

N 
P 

ST

W GODFREY ST

N 
S 

ST
W AVERY ST

W MALLORYST

N 
Q 

ST
W MORENOST

N 
R 

ST

W GODFREY ST

W LEE ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2017-06
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

SFD SFD

SFD

SFD

SFDSFD

VAC

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD
SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFDSFD

SF
D

SFD



N 
Q 

ST

W MALLORY ST
N 

R 
ST

W MORENO ST

Export_Output_18
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
0 50 100 150

Ft

Z-2017-06
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



W MORENOST

N 
R 

ST

N 
Q 

ST

N 
S 

ST

W MALLORYST

W BLOUNT ST

ENGLEWOOD

BROWNSVILLE

BROWNSVILLE

BROWNSVILLE

BROWNSVILLE

W BLOUNT ST

N 
P 

ST

W GODFREY ST

N 
S 

ST

W AVERY ST

W MALLORYST

N 
Q 

ST

W MORENOST

N 
R 

ST

W GODFREY ST

parcel_cama_Buffer1
Export_Output_19
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2017-06
CRA MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



Public notice sign



Subject parcel



Subject Property



Looking north from subject property



Looking east from subject property



Looking south from subject property



Looking at the church from the subject property 
at the intersection of Q St and Moreno



Looking west from subject property



Looking east from corner of Q St and 
Moreno, toward Pace Blvd



Last Updated: 3/16/17

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

htt))7/mvescambia.c()m/I)usiness/ds

Rezoning Application
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Number: ^'S^op-Cie Accepted by: ^C PB Meeting:inn- /'II

1. Contact Information:

A. Property Owner/Applicant: New Birth Baptist Church of Pensacola Incorporated
Mailing Address: 1610 N. QStreet Pensacola, FL 32505
Business Phone: 850-432-9935 Cell: 850-501-3373

Emaj|. peacockfloyd@yahoo.com

B. Authorized Agent (if applicable): Floyd Peacock
. 1610 North "Q" StreetMailing Address:

Business Phone: 850-432-9935
Emaj|. peacockfloyd@yahoo.com

Ce„. 850-501-3373

Note: Owner must complete the attached Agent Affidavit. If there is more than one owner, each owner must

complete an Agent Affidavit. Application will be voided if changes to this application are found.

2. Property Information:

. 1703 North "Q" StreetA. Existing Street Address:

Parcel ID (s): 172S301300110019

B. Total acreage of the subject property: u-°°^ '

C Existing Zoning: MDR
HDRProposed Zoning: r"-^rA

. MU-UFLU Category:

D. Is the subject propertydeveloped (if yes, explain): '^°

E. Sanitary Sewer: v Septic

-2-



















Page 1of3

Recorded in Public Records 04/21/2008 at 02:02 PM OR Book 6316 Page 1585,
Instrument #2008030222, Ernie Lee Magaha Clerk of the Circuit Court Escambia
County, FL Recording $27.00 Deed Stamps $84.00

Prepared by and return to:
Fletcher Fleming
Attorney at Law
Shell, Fleming, Davis & Menge, P.A.
P.O. Box 1831 226 Palafox Place, 9th Floor
Pensacola, FL 32591-1831
850-434-2411

File Number: Fl918-00002
[Space Above This Line For Recording Data]_

Warranty Deed

This Warranty Deed made this 18thdayof April,2008 between Mary E. Gagliardi whose postoffice address is 1562
Avalon Boulevard, Milton, FL 32583, grantor, and New Birth Baptist Church of Pensacola, Inc., a Florida non profit
corporation whose post office address is 1610 North Q Street, Pensacola, FL 32505, grantee:

(Whenever used herein the terms "grantor" and "grantee" include all the parties to this instrument and the heirs, legal representatives, and assigns of
individuals, and the successors and assigns ofcorporations, trusts and trustees)

Witnesseth, that said grantor, for and in considerationof the sum of TEN AND NO/100 DOLLARS (SI0.00) and other
good and valuable considerations to said grantor in hand paid by said grantee, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged,
has granted, bargained, and sold to the said grantee, and grantee's heirs and assigns forever, the following described land,
situate, lying and being in Escambia County, Florida to-wit:

Lots sixteen (16) and seventeen (17) in Block nineteen (19), Hazelhurst, the Albert Hazel Land
Company's Subdivision of Lot three (3) and five (5) of Section seventeen (17) and lots three (3) and
four (4) of Section Thirty One (31), Township Two (2) South, Range Thirty (30) West as per map
recorded in Deed Book 55, at Page 262 of the Public Records of Escambia County, Florida.

Parcel Identification Number: 172S30-1300-160-019

The above referenced property is not the homestead property of the Grantor.

Together withall the tenements, hereditaments andappurtenances thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining.

To Have and to Hold, the same in fee simple forever.

And subjectto taxes for the currentyear and lateryearsand all valideasements and restrictions of record, if any, which are
not hereby reimposed; and also subject to any claim, right,title or interest arising from any recorded instrument reserving,
conveying, leasing, or otherwise alienating anyinterest inthe oil,gasandotherminerals. Andgrantor does warrant the title
to said land and will defend the same against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever, subject only to the exceptions set
forth herein.

In Witness Whereof, grantor has hereuntoset grantor's hand and seal the day and year first above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered in our presence:

Witness Name: Fletche^

Witness Name: Monica S. Cone

Amess Name: Hetche^rieming
~7] W/^.

Mary fc. GagKardi

DoubleTimea

http://dory.escambiaclerk.eom//Lanta 6/16/2017









^JSSSLc*

0/>etty ap^*

Chris Jones, CFA
Escambia County PropertyAppraiser

Office Phone: (850) 434-2735

Website: gscpa.org

Downtown Office

221 Palafox Place, Suite 300

Pensacola, FL 32502

Deeds Fax: (850)434-2162

Molino Office

6440 Hwy 95-A, Suite

Molino, FL 32577

Fax: (850) 587-3290

ECPA: Revised 11/2016

Effective for Tax Year

2018
Received by:

g%0£i :'.Ot

Date:. JLlAti
r

General Instructions for Combination and Split Requests

" Prior legal approval from the appropriate zoning/planning/community development agency in your jurisdiction is required.
Your Escambia County Property Appraiser's Office does not issue determinations regarding the legality of split requests and

will not advise owners on such matters

The Property Appraiser's Office strives to maintain excellence in customer service satisfaction and strives to prevent adverse affects that can
occur once aCombination or Split Request is processed. All applicants should review the requirements prior to submitting such arequest.

> Only one request per year is permitted for any property included in aCombination or Split Request.
> The deadline to submit a Combination or Split Request is June 1st ofthe current year.
> List allcurrent parcel number(s) under the column titled Parcel Number.
> Split Requests require you to submit asurvey with alegal description which clearly defines the new property boundaries at the

time ofthe request. This office will not create ordraft property descriptions.
> Combination Requests do not require asurvey, sketch or legal description. However, such documents are always beneficial and

appreciated. Combination Requests are required to meet the following criteria:
• All parcels must be titled in the same name(s) asof January 1st of the requesting year.

• All parcels must lie in the same jurisdictional boundary, i.e., city orcounty limits.

• All parcels must be contiguous.

• This office may request a Homestead Affidavit be filed if the parcel(s) has two or more dwellings/living units.
OurOffice reserves the right to inspect and investigate the premises to confirm its status.

• If one parcel is currently receiving the benefit of ahomestead or institutional exemption, the property owner(s) must file
a new exemption application to add new lands to the original parcel.

• The first year in which the legal descriptions are "combined" shall constitute the base year for the new lands and any cap
protection from prior yearswill reset at full market value.

> Forms must be signed by the current owner(s). Forms signed by "prospective buyers" will not be processed.
> You may mail or personally deliver the completed form and its attachments to the Downtown or Molino Office. You may schedule an

appointment with a Mapping Department staff member by calling the office.

Requests will be processed from April 1st through June 1s' of the effective year. The processing time should not hinder the sale of a
parcel. You may use the fully executed form to provide information for permitting, closings, etc. This office will review and pre-issue a new
parcel number(s) as quickly as possible. Questions regarding applications submitted to the Downtown Office should be directed to Debby
Cooper, ext. 123. Questions regarding applications submitted to the Molino Office should be directed to Lisa Arredondo. ext. 203.

The Property Appraiser's Office makes neither representations nor guarantees of the usability of aparcel once aCombination or Split request
is complete. Property owner(s) should contact any lenders or mortgagors to verify the request is permitted by the lien holder.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please contact our Office at(850) 434-2735.

"Our mission is to place the public first while providing prompt, efficient service in afriendly, professional manner."













BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Andrew Holmer, Development Services Manager

 Development Services Department

FROM: David Forte, Division Manager
Transportation & Traffic Operations Division

DATE:June 21, 2017

RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2017-06

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2017-06, 1610 N ‘Q’ Street, agenda 
item for the upcoming Planning Board meeting scheduled for July 11, 2017. Please see 
the below comments.

Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in the 
County’s Capital Improvement Program within the vicinity of the subject parcel. At this 
time, TTO has no immediate comments for the proposed rezoning request.

Note: TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process. 

cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director
Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director
Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director

3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX)



 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
July 17, 2017 
 
Horace Jones, Director 
Escambia County Planning & Zoning Division 
3363 West Park Place 
Pensacola, FL 32505 
 
SUBJECT: REZONING REQUEST FOR THE FOLLOWING: 
 PARCEL# 17-2S-30-1300-110-019 FROM MDR TO HDR 
 ADDRESS: 1703 NORTH Q STREET 
 
Horace, 
 
I have reviewed the Rezoning Request package for the abovementioned location and my comments are 
below: 
 
Sec. 3-3.4 (Brownsville Overlay)  

(e) Site and building requirements.  
The following site and building requirements apply only to non-residential uses within 
the Brn-OL district:  
(1) Structure height.. No structure height shall exceed 45 feet above highest adjacent 
grade. Any lower height required by use or underlying zoning district shall govern. 
(2) Materials and detailing. New structures, additions, and renovations shall use 
materials and detailing that maintain the distinct character and harmony of the 
redevelopment district. Vinyl or metal siding is prohibited on the primary facades of 
buildings adjacent to public rights-of-way. Accessory structures shall use the same or 
similar materials, color, and style of the primary structure’s façade if visible from a 
public way.  
(3) Setbacks. New construction along Mobile Highway or Cervantes Street shall be set 
back a distance similar to that of adjacent buildings unless customer parking is provided 
adjacent to the street in support of CPTED principles. Exceptions may be granted if the 
setback is pedestrian oriented and contributes to the quality and character of the 
streetscape.  
(4) Facades. a. Front facades. Front building facades more than 80 feet in width shall be 
divided into increments by changes in materials, bay windows, wall offsets, or similar 
methods. b. Rear façade. A minimum of 15 feet of a building’s rear façade facing a 
public right of way, parking area, or open space shall consist of transparent materials, not 
including reflective glass.  

221 Palafox Place • Pensacola, Florida 32502 
850.595.4988 • www.myescambia.com 

Tonya Gant, Director 
Neighborhood & Human Services Department 

Clara Long, Division Manager 
Community Redevelopment Agency 



(5) Natural features. Natural features shall be protected and integrated into site design 
and development where possible.  
(6) Signs. Site signage is limited to one freestanding monument sign per development 
parcel, scaled primarily for pedestrians, and not to exceed 100 square feet in area and 12 
feet in height, except for multi-tenant development where the sign may be up to 300 
square feet. Sign colors, materials, and lighting shall avoid adverse visual impacts on 
surrounding properties. Wall signs shall not obstruct design details, windows, or cornices 
of the buildings to which they are attached. For individual tenants in a multi-tenant 
development, wall signs shall not exceed 20 square feet per sign.  
(7) Lighting. Lighting should serve to illuminate facades, entrances, and signage to 
provide an adequate level of personal safety while enhancing the aesthetic Supp 1 LDC 
3:71 appeal of the buildings. Building and signage lighting must be indirect, with the 
light source hidden from direct pedestrian and motorist view.  
(8) Parking. Off-street parking shall be located in the rear. If the lot orientation cannot 
accommodate adequate rear parking, parking may be located on the side. 

 
 The purpose of the Brownsville Overlay district establishes supplemental land use regulations to 
support the objectives of the adopted Brownsville area community redevelopment plan.  The 
intent of the additional land use controls is to enhance the character of an area undergoing 
revitalization and support a mix of commercial, industrial, and residential uses within the 
Brownsville area. 

 

Both the Brownsville Overlay and the Brownsville Area Community Redevelopment Plan does not 
address rezoning, however the property located at 1903 North Q Street would be compatible with the 
surrounding similar uses. 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me at 850-595-3596. 

Sincerely, 

Clara Long, CRA Division Manager 
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. B.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  
CASE : Z-2017-11
APPLICANT: Tom Hammond, Agent for William R. Smith, Owner 

ADDRESS: 7237 Mobile Highway 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 22-1S-31-2305-000-000
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban  
DISTRICT: 1  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 09/07/2017 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: LDR, Low Density Residential district (four du/acre)

TO: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the plan provisions.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.
Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) is intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses
while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban
land uses.

CPP FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas.
To promote the efficient use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure,
the County will encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize



the County will encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize
development densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and
Industrial Future Land Use categories (with the exception of residential development). 

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to HDMU is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use (FLU) category MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The FLU allows for
residential, retail sales & services, professional office, recreational facilities, public and
civic, limited agriculture. As stated in CPP FLU 1.5.1, the property will utilize the existing
roadway, utilities, and infrastructure, and encourages the existing development of the
underutilized property to maximize development densities and intensities located in the
MU-S FLU category.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

LDC 3-1.6 Compatibility
(a)Generally. Zoning districts provide the primary means to establish and maintain the
necessary balance between the needs and interests of different land uses, allowing
neighboring uses to coexist successfully in a stable fashion over time, protecting the
investments in each. Although zoning separates generally incompatible development,
inclusion as a permitted use within a district does not alone ensure compatibility with
other district uses.

Sec. 3-2.5 Low Density Residential district (LDR).
(a) Purpose. The Low Density Residential (LDR) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for residential uses at low densities within suburban areas. The
primary intent of the district is to provide for large-lot suburban type residential
neighborhood development that blends aspects of rural openness with the benefits of
urban street connectivity, and at greater density than the Rural Residential
district.Residential uses within the LDR district are predominantly detached single-family
dwellings. Clustering dwellings on smaller residential lots may occur where needed to
protect prime farmland from non-agricultural use or to conserve and protect
environmentally sensitive areas. The district allows non-residential uses that are
compatible with suburban residential neighborhoods and the natural resources of the
area.

Sec. 3-2.9 High Density Mixed-use district (HDMU).
(a) Purpose. The High Density Mixed-use (HDMU) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for a complimentary mix of high density residential uses and
compatible non-residential uses within urban areas. The primary intent of the district is to
provide for a mix of neighborhood retail sales, services and professional offices with
greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the Low Density Mixed-use district.
Additionally, the HDMU district is intended to rely on urban street connectivity and
encourage vertical mixes of commercial and residential uses within the same building to



accommodate a physical pattern of development characteristic of village main streets
and older neighborhood commercial areas. Residential uses within the district include all
forms of single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings.

(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the HDMU district are limited to the following:

(1) Residential. The following residential uses are allowed throughout the district, but if
within a Commercial (C) future land use category they are permitted only if part of a
predominantly commercial development. a. Group living, excluding dormitories, fraternity
and sorority houses, and residential facilities providing substance abuse treatment,
post-incarceration reentry, or similar services.
b. Manufactured (mobile) homes, including manufactured home subdivisions, but
excluding new or expanded manufactured home parks.
c. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached or attached,
including townhouses and zero lot line subdivisions.
d. Two-family and multi-family dwellings.
See also conditional uses in this district

(2) Retail sales. Small-scale (gross floor area 6000 sq.ft. or less per lot) retail sales,
including Low-THC marijuana dispensing facilities, sales of beer and wine, but excluding
sales of liquor, automotive fuels, or motor vehicles, and excluding permanent outdoor
storage, display, or sales. See also conditional uses in this district.

(3) Retail services. The following small-scale (gross floor area 6000 sq.ft. or less per
lot) retail services, excluding outdoor work or permanent outdoor storage:
a. Bed and breakfast inns.
b. Boarding and rooming houses.
c. Child care facilities.
d. Personal services, including those of beauty shops, health clubs, pet groomers, dry
cleaners, and tattoo parlors.
e. Professional services, including those of realtors, bankers, accountants, engineers,
architects, dentists, physicians, and attorneys.
f. Repair services, including appliance repair, furniture refinishing and upholstery, watch
and jewelry repair, small engine and motor services, but excluding major motor vehicle
or boat service or repair.
g. Restaurants, and brewpubs, including on-premises consumption of alcoholic
beverages, but excluding drive-in or drive-through service and brewpubs with distribution
of alcoholic beverages for off-site sales.
See also conditional uses in this district.

(4) Public and civic.
a. Preschools and kindergartens.
b. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance.
c. Foster care facilities.
d. Places of worship.
e. Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers.
See also conditional uses in this district.



See also conditional uses in this district.

(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a. Marinas, private only.
b. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
See also conditional uses in this district.

(6) Industrial and related. No industrial or related uses.

(7) Agricultural and related. Agricultural production limited to food primarily for
personal consumption by the producer, but no farm animals.

(8) Other uses. [Reserved]

(c) Conditional uses. Through the conditional use process prescribed in Chapter 2, the
BOA may conditionally allow the following uses within the HDMU district:

(1) Residential.
a. Dormitories.
b. Fraternity and sorority houses.
c. Manufactured (mobile) home parks.

(2) Retail sales. Medium-scale (gross floor area greater than 6000 sq.ft. per lot, but no
greater than 35,000 sq.ft.) retail sales, including sales of beer and wine and automotive
fuels, but excluding sales of motor vehicles and liquor, and excluding permanent outdoor
storage, display, or sales.

(3) Retail services.
a. Medium-scale (gross floor area greater than 6000 sq. ft. per lot, but no greater than
35,000 sq. ft.) retail services, excluding motor vehicle service and repair.
b. Restaurants and brewpubs with drive-in or drive-through service and brewpubs with
the distribution of on-premises produced alcoholic beverages for off-site sales.
c. Small-scale (gross floor area 6000 sq.ft. or less per lot) major motor vehicle service
and repair, excluding painting or body work and outdoor work.

(4) Public and civic.
a. Broadcast stations with satellite dishes and antennas, excluding towers.
b. Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
c. Clubs, civic and fraternal.
d. Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and
neighborhood centers.
e. Cinerators.
f. Educational facilities not among the permitted uses of the district.
g. Funeral establishments.
h. Hospitals.
i. Offices for government agencies or public utilities.
j. Public utility structures exceeding the district structure height limit and



telecommunications towers of any height, excluding any industrial uses.
k. Warehousing or maintenance facilities for government agencies or public utilities.

(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a. Amusement arcade centers and bingo facilities.
b. Golf courses, tennis centers, swimming pools and similar active outdoor recreational
facilities, including associated country clubs.
c. Parks with permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.

(6) Industrial and related. Microbreweries, microdistilleries, and microwineries

(7) Agricultural and related. 
a. Horses or other domesticated equines kept on site, and stables for such animals, only
as a private residential accessory with a minimum lot area of two acres and a maximum
of one animal per acre.
b. Veterinary clinics.

(8) Other uses.
a. Self-storage facilities with a maximum lot area of one acre and outdoor storage limited
to operable motor vehicles and boats. No vehicle rental.
b. Structures of permitted uses exceeding the district structure height limit, excluding
telecommunications towers.

(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the HDMU district
that are not part of a predominantly residential development or a planned unit
development, or are not identified as exempt by district regulations, shall be on parcels
that satisfy at least one of the following location criteria:
(1) Proximity to intersection. Along an arterial or collector street and within 200 feet of
an intersection with another arterial or collector.
(2) Proximity to traffic generator. Along an arterial or collector street and within a
one-quarter mile radius of an individual traffic generator of more than 600 daily trips,
such as an apartment complex, military base, college campus, hospital, shopping mall or
similar generator.
(3) Infill development. Along an arterial or collector street, in an area where already
established non-residential uses are otherwise consistent with the HDMU district, and
where the new use would constitute infill development of similar intensity as the
conforming development on surrounding parcels. Additionally, the location would
promote compact development and not contribute to or promote strip commercial
development.
(4) Site design. Along an arterial street and at the intersection with a local street that
serves to connect the arterial street to another arterial, and all of the following site design
conditions:
a. Any intrusion into a recorded residential subdivision is limited to a corner lot
b. Access and stormwater management is shared with adjoining uses or properties to the
extent practicable.
c. Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing the more
intensive elements of the use, such as solid waste dumpsters and truck



loading/unloading areas, furthest from the residential uses.
(5) Documented compatibility. A compatibility analysis prepared by the applicant
provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances regarding the parcel
or use that were not anticipated by the alternative criteria, and the proposed use will be
able to achieve long-term compatibility with existing and potential uses. Additionally, the
following conditions exist:
a. The parcel has not been rezoned by the landowner from the mixed-use, commercial,
or industrial zoning assigned by the county.
b. If the parcel is within a county redevelopment district, the use will be consistent with
the district’s adopted redevelopment plan, as reviewed and recommended by the
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code (LDC). High Density Mixed-Use (HDMU) allows for a mix of
neighborhood retail sales, services and professional offices. Rezoning to HDMU would
result in an isolated zoning district. However, rezoning of the subject property will meet
the location criteria as infill development. Mobile Highway is an arterial street and the
subject property has an already established non-residential use. 

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses 
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities and conditions
and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such
that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all
permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius area, staff observed properties with zoning districts Low Density
Residential (LDR), Medium Density Residential (MDR) and Commercial (Com). The LDR
and MDR uses in the surrounding area are single family residence or vacant residential.
The Com zoned property is currently a single family residence. There are no commercial
uses is the surrounding area; nevertheless, this site has existed and has been
compatible with the surrounding residential uses for over 12 years as a place of worship
that was permitted under the previous Land Development Code (LDC). A Development
Order was issued for Open Door Baptist Church under Development Review #04062741
on January 26, 2005. This Development Order authorized the construction of an 11,060
sq. ft. fellowship center and on-site retention pond. The zoning at the time
was Agricultural (AG) under the previous LDC which allowed places of worship as a
permitted use. If the property is rezoned to HDMU, it would also require conditional use
approval from the Board of Adjustment due to the gross floor area of the
existing building being greater than 6,000 sq. ft. The proposed rezoning to HDMU would
intensify the allowable uses of the subject property that would affect the surrounding
residential uses.



Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions 
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
Staff found changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property. Staff
found rezoning case Z-2004-02 at 7267 Mobile Highway that requested the property to
be rezoned from R-2 to C-1. At the time, the Rezoning Hearing Examiner and staff
recommend deniel for the proposed rezoning request. This case was ultimately
approved by a vote of 4-0  the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) on March 4,
2004. Also, a sign variance was approved by the Board of Adjustment on August 18,
2004 to allow a maximim allowable sign area of 70 sq. ft. on the subject property for the
church.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment would not result in a logical and orderly development
pattern. The proposed rezoning to HDMU would result in an isolated zoning district.
There is one Commercial zoned property to the north and is separated by Mobile
Highway.

Criterion f., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Effect on natural environment
Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated 
on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review
process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact
on the natural environment.

Attachments
Working Case File



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2017-11 
 



STRATTON
PL

JA
M

ES
V

IL
L

E
R

D

MOBILE HWY

G
L

ID
D

E
N

L
N

ILEX
LN

K
LO

NDIK
E

RD

YO
SH

I D
A

S
T

MURRAY
LN

ILEX LN

RE

S MON
D

O

LN

CHIMNEYPINES DR

HELTON
LN

SPARS H
O

TT

DR

S
T

A
G

E
C

O
A

C
H

 R
D

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2017-11
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Caleb MacCartee



Com

HC/LI

LDMU

MDR

MDR

LDR

S
T

R
A

T
T

O
N

P
L

G
LI

D
D

EN
L

N

MOBILE HWY

I LEX LN

S
PA

RS
HOTT

DR

ILEX LN

MURRAY LN

500' Buffer_of_PARCELS
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2017-11
ZONING MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Caleb MacCartee



MU-U

MU-S

S
TR

A
TT

O
N

P
L

G
LI

D
D

EN
L

N

MOBILE HWY

I LEX LN

S
PA

RS
HOTT

DR

ILEX LN

MURRAY
LN

500' Buffer_of_PARCELS
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD

Escambia_2016_Aerials.ecw
RGB

Red:    Red
Green: Green
Blue:   Blue0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2017-11
FLU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Caleb MacCartee



MURRAY LN

MOBILEHWY

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900
Ft

Z-2017-11
EXISTING LAND USE MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Caleb MacCartee

SF

SF
MH

SF

SF

SF
VACANT
CHURCHSF

VACANT

VACANT

VACANT

VACANT

VACANT

Z-2004-02
R-2 TO C-1

BCC APPROVED: 3/4/2004



MOBILE HW Y

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD

Escambia_2016_Aerials.ecw
RGB

Red:    Red
Green: Green
Blue:   Blue0 250 500 750

Ft

Z-2017-11
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Caleb MacCartee



S
T

R
A

T
T

O
N

P
L

G
LI

D
D

EN
L

N

MOBILE HWY

I LEX LN

S
PA

RS
HOTT

DR

ILEX LN

MURRAY LN

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_2006

Escambia_2016_Aerials.ecw
RGB

Red:    Red
Green: Green
Blue:   Blue0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2017-11
WETLANDS MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Caleb MacCartee



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING SIGN



LOOKING SOUTHWEST ONTO SITE



LOOKING SOUTHWEST ONTO SITE



LOOKING SOUTH ONTO SITE



LOOKING NORTHWEST ALONG MOBILE HWY



LOOKING NORTH FROM SITE ACROSS MOBILE HWY



LOOKING SOUTHEAST ALONG MOBILE HWY



LOOKING SOUTHEAST ONTO SITE



Innqil
HAMMOND ENGINEERING, INC.

Florida Certificate df Authorization No. DODD9 1 3D

Alabama Certificate of Authorization No. 327V

June 8, 2017

Mrs. Allyson Cain
Planning Board Coordinator
Development Services Bureau
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida 32505

Reference: Re-zoning Parcel No. 22-1S-31-2305-000-000
7237 Mobile Hwy.
HEI Project No. 17-011

Dear Allyson:

The above referenced parcel is currently zoned LDR and is currently developed as a
church which is not being used. The parcel is located at 7237 Mobile Hwy. in Escambia
County, FL. We request the parcel be re-zoned to HDMU. The re-zoning will allow the
applicant to use the vacant church building as an office and storage facility for their
business, Affinity Elevator.

We have attached all of the required items listed on the re-zoning application. Please
review these items and provide the county's findings at your earliest convenience. Should
you have questions or comments, please give us a call.

Sincerely,

HAMMOND ENGINEERING, INC.

Thomas G. Hammond, Jr., PE.
President

Attachments

3BD2 North "S" Street PENSACOLA, FL 325D5



Last Updated: 3/16/17

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

http://myescambia.com/business/ds

Rezoning Application
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Number:"^ "^H- j/ Accepted by: jj PB Meeting: __Z_

1. Contact Information:

,Aerty Owner/Applicant: p^K\£/ ^ IaUM--/ .Jb
ng Address:M0£?>t; (^&3&\ A<^&<>H^fc

A. Property

Mailir

Business Phone: ^(AA - LoiiXF^

Email: HYavWj.W <g flf^/KjVl-f ^Uv/ATfl£^, £pU
Cell:

B. Authorized Agent (if applicable):

Mailing Address: '^j)Q'cL M> (^>
Business Phone: fgt?*j4 2.(^0^
Email: H'CM/l (J? "^l^ndA-

lW<MO^O_kk4a^£Si^ ^v-^C

Cell: '^4 q^^fl

/Vote:Owner must complete the attached AgentAffidavit. If there is more than one owner, each ownermust

completeanAgentAffidavit. Application will be voided if changes to this application arefound.

2. Property Information:

A. Existing Street Address: 1Z-31 M 0P?i U3 Ui a.
Parcel ID (s): "Z Z-- V? - ^ j ^ L^Q^ -GCQ - C£tj

B. Total acreage of the subject property:

C. Existing Zoning: l—.\J> u^

Proposed Zoning: \r\ L?RaIA

FLU Category: \^\^L~"^>
D. Is the subject property developed (if yes, explain): t^X^T"(iQl^

E. Sanitary Sewer: Septic: yC
-2-

LLX

4S5& ^-£6































3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: July 18, 2017 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2017-11 
 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2017-11, 7237 Mobile Highway, agenda 
item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for August 1st, 2017. Please see the 
below comments. 
 

Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in the 
County’s Capital Improvement Program or the Florida Department of Transportation 5-
Year Work Program within the vicinity of the subject parcel.  

Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, this 
segment of Mobile Highway is currently functioning within its allowable capacity for 
traffic volumes between the segment of Beulah Road to Pine Forest Road. The 
maximum level-of-service (LOS) for the roadway segment is LOS D (17,700 trips/day), 
and currently the roadway segment is functioning at a LOS C (9,109 trips/day) and is 
expected to remain at a LOS C by Year 2024 (10,057 trips/day). 

 
At this time, TTO has no immediate comments for the proposed rezoning 

request. 
 
Note: TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. C.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  
CASE : Z-2017-12
APPLICANT: Micheal W. Milner, Agent for Richard Mertins, Owner 

ADDRESS: 2410 Langley Avenue 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 10-1S-29-3101-027-001
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 4  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 09/07/2017 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)

TO: HC/LI-NA, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district, prohibiting the
subsequent establishment of any microbreweries, microdistillerires,
microwineries, bars, nightclubs, or adult entertainment uses (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the plan provisions

Comprehensive Plan (CPP)1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future



Land Use (FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and nonresidential
uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and
suburban land uses within the category as a whole. Range of allowable uses include:
Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Light Industrial, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The maximum residential density is 25 dwelling units per
acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote
the efficient use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County
will encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and Industrial Future
Land Use categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to HC/LI-NA is consistent with the intent and purpose of
Future Land Use (FLU) category MU-U as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1.  The FLU allows for
a mix of both residential and non-residential uses such a retail and services, professional
office and light industrial. As stated in CPP FLU 1.5.1, if development occurs, the
property will utilize the existing roadway, utilities, and infrastructure and will encourage
redevelopment of the underutilized property to maximize development densities and
intensities located in the MU-U FLU use categories.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

Sec. 3-2.11 Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (HC/LI).
(a) Purpose. The Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) district establishes
appropriate areas and land use regulations for a complementary mix of industrial uses
with a broad range of commercial activities. The primary intent of the district is to allow
light manufacturing, large-scale wholesale and retail uses, major services, and other
more intense uses than allowed in the Commercial district. The variety and intensity of
non-residential uses within the HC/LI district is limited by their compatibility with
surrounding uses. All commercial and industrial operations are limited to the confines of
buildings and not allowed to produce undesirable effects on other property. To retain
adequate area for commercial and industrial activities, other uses within the district are
limited.

HC/LI-NA designation.  Any applicant for rezoning to the HC/LI zoning district may
request a HC/LI-NA designation prohibiting the subsequent establishment of any
microbreweries, microdistilleries, microwineries, bars, nightclubs, or adult entertainment
uses on the rezoned property.  The request shall be in the form of a notarized affidavit
that acknowledges this use restriction and affirms that it is a voluntary request.  Once
approved according to the rezoning process of Chapter 2, the HC/LI-NA zoning
designation and its prohibitions shall apply to the property, regardless of ownership,
unless the parcel is rezoned.



FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code (LDC). All commercial and industrial operations are limited to the
confines of buildings and no outdoor work or storage is allowed. Based on the
application submitted to Development Review Committee (DRC) and for the
rezoning, there would be a need for a conditional use approval from the Board of
Adjustments (BOA).

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses 
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities and conditions
and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such
that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all
permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius area, staff observed properties with zoning districts MDR and
Com.  The majority of the parcels within the 500' area are currently being used or listed
by the Property Appraiser as Commercial and the change to HC/LI would be compatible
with the existing surrounding uses. The adjacent property to the east is part of the
landing zone for Pensacola Regional Airport. Any new development will go through the
Site Plan Review Process and must meet all LDC requirements for buffering, setbacks,
access, and stormwater as well as other code requirements that may apply.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions 
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern
due to the proximity to major roads and already established commercial business
surrounding the parcel to the south, west, and north.  To the east and southeast is
Pensacola Regional Airport runway which creates a huge natural buffer from any



Pensacola Regional Airport runway which creates a huge natural buffer from any
other business or residential properties in the area.   

Criterion f., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Effect on natural environment
Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not
indicated on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan
Review process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse
impact on the natural environment.

Attachments
Working Case File



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2017-12 
 



2500 FOOT BUFFER

500 FOOT BUFFER

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD

WETLANDS_20060 1,000 2,000 3,000
Ft

Z-2017-12
LOCATION & WETLANDS MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher

INTERSTATE 10

CREIGHTON RD

N 9T
H AVE

COLLEGE BLVD

LANGLEY AVE

TIP
PIN

 AV
E

N 9T
H AVE



LANGLEY AVE

TONI ST

N 9TH AVE

CONCORD
WAY

SH
ER

RI
LL

AV
E

TU
LA

NE
 A

VE

TI
PP

IN
 A

VE

CO
NC

OR
D

W
AY

BEAUMONT ST

EMILY ST

Com

Com

Com

Com

Com

Com
Com

Com
Com

HDMU

MDRMDR

MDR

MDR

parcel_cama_Buffer24

PARCELS

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD0 210 420 630
Ft

Z-2017-12
ZONING MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



LANGLEY AVE

TONI ST

N 9TH AVE

CONCORD
WAY

SH
ER

RI
LL

AV
E

TU
LA

NE
 A

VE

TI
PP

IN
 A

VE

CO
NC

OR
D

W
AY

BEAUMONT ST

EMILY ST

MU-U

parcel_cama_Buffer24

PARCELS

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD0 210 420 630
Ft

Z-2017-12
FLU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



LANGLEY AVE

TONI ST

N 9TH AVE

TI
PP

IN
 A

VE

BEAUMONT ST

EMILY ST

parcel_cama_Buffer24

PARCELS

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD0 170 340 510
Ft

Z-2017-12
ELU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher

WALGREEN

WALGREEN

CHILDCARE
NETWORK

STUDIO

DR. DIET PROGRAM

STEAKOUT

SUBWAY

PENSACOLA REGIONAL AIRPORT
LANDING STRIP

PENSACOLA REGIONAL 
AIRPORT
LANDING STRIP

AUTO REPAIR

RESTAURANT

RESTAURANT

RESTAURANT

GAS STATION
CAR WASH 
OIL SERVICE

VCVCOFFICE

SF V SF SFSF
V SF

V SF SF
SFSF

SF

STRIP
MALL

OF
FIC

E

OF
FIC

E

OF
FIC

E

OF
FIC

E



LANGLEY AVE

EMILY ST

N 9TH AVE

PARCELS

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD

Escambia_2016_Aerials.ecw
RGB

Red:    Red

Green: Green

Blue:   Blue0 100 200 300
Ft

Z-2017-12
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



Public Hearing Sign



Public Hearing Sign Looking East toward Langley



Front of Existing Building



Looking Northeast



Looking North



Looking Northwest toward 9th Ave.



Looking Southwest From Subject Property Parking Lot



Looking South at Langley Ave.



Looking Southeast at Langley Ave.



Looking East at Subject Property



Rezoning Application
2410 LanglevAve. Pensacola, FL 32504

CAMP BOW WOW OF PENSACOLA









Last Updated: 3/16/17

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

http://mvescambia.com/business/ds

Rezoning Application
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Number: <£ -J-0 P-/^Accepted bM\ACou~ PB Meeting: / *//7

1. Contact Information:

A. Property Owner/Applicant: For DogS Of NW Fla, IflC.
Mailing Address: 11 NBeech Springs Cir, The Woodlands, TX 77389

Business Phone: Cell: 769-216-9675
Emaji: MWMilner@Gmail.com

B. Authorized Agent (if applicable):

Mailing Address:

Business Phone: Cell:

Email:

Note: Owner must complete the attached Agent Affidavit. If there is more than one owner, each owner must

complete anAgentAffidavit. Application will be voided ifchangesto thisapplication arefound.

2. Property Information:

a. Existing street Address: 2410 Langley Ave.
Parcel ID (s): 10-1 S-29-31 01-027-001

B. Total acreage of the subject property: ^^ ' '
C. Existing Zoning: COM

Proposed Zoning: HC/LI-NA

FLU Category: MU-U
D. Is the subject property developed (if yes, explain): The existing property is

developed and has been the location of a retail store since 1996.

E. Sanitary Sewer: Septic:

-2-



Last Updated: 3/16/17 

 

‐ 3 ‐ 
 

 

3. Amendment Request 

A. Please provide a general description of the proposed zoning request, explaining why 

it is necessary and/or appropriate. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

B. Rezoning Approval Conditions – Please address ALL the following approval 

conditions for your rezoning request. (use supplement sheets as needed) 

1. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the 
goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any 
of its provisions. 
____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

 

2. Consistent with LDC. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the stated purposes 
and intent of the LDC and not in conflict with any of its provisions. 
____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Please refer to Attachment A.

We met with the county planning and zoning staff on May 31, 2017.

The county staff concurred that the property should be rezoned  from

COM to HC/LI-NA, and that with the rezoning the use would be consistent

with the county's comprehensive plan.                                            

The county staff indicated that with the HC/LI-NA rezoning, it would be 

consistent with the LDC.                                                                  











Development Se
Escambia County, Florida

FOR OFFICE USE:

CASE #:

AFFIDAVIT OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

2410 Langley Ave, Pensacola
As applicant for rezoning of the property located at

., Florida, property referenoe number(s), 10-1S-29-3101-027-001
Iaffirm this to be a voluntary request and hereby acknowledge if

this parcel is designated HC/LI-NA, then notwithstanding any other provision of LDC Chapter 3
Sec. 3-2.11, bars, nightclubs, and adult entertainment uses shall be prohibited uses for this
parcel.

Applicant Name:.
licheal W. Milner Fmail- MWMilner@Gmail.com

Address. 11 NBeech Springs Cir, The Woodlands, TX 77389 Phnne: 769-216-9675

Z>

Jignature of Property Owner

STATE OF lejQS

licheal W. Milner

Printed Name of Applicant

Micheal W. Milner
Printed Name of Property Owner

COUNTY OF OToK^SQfntPf ij

3 July 2017

Date

3 July 2017

Date

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this -3'T day of^lH_ 20 JJ_,
bv WiChael CLK Mi'lMef _.

Personally Known • Or Produced Identifications^Type of Identification Produced: ~V0 i- 3 x_JM&"r

Printed Name of Notary









































































   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. D.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  
CASE : Z-2017-13
APPLICANT: Hattie M. McGary, Owner 

ADDRESS: 105 Louis Street 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 16-1N-31-1000-003-012
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban  
DISTRICT: 5  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 09/07/2017 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: LDR, Low Density Residential district (four du/acre)

TO: LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district (seven du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the plan provisions

FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. General descriptions, range of allowable uses,
and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land use categories
in Escambia County are outlined below.

CPP FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote
the efficient use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County
will encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development



densities and intensities located in the MU-S, Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U), Commercial
(C), and Industrial (I) FLU
categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to LDMU is not consistent with the intent and purpose of
Future Land Use (FLU) category MU-S, as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The MU-S FLU is
intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses, promoting compatible infill
development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. The applicant's
description of the the intent of the proposed development is identified in the language
under MU-S FLU range of allowable uses under retail services. The location of the
proposed amendment does not meet the requirements for infill development and based
on the existing conditions on the ground, would be incompatible with the low-density
residential character of the surrounding area. Granting of the amendment would not
serve the purpose of demarcating or enhancing an existing suburban to urban transition,
as such transition does not currently exist at this location.

The proposed amendment for the site would promote the efficient use public roads,
utilities and of already existing infrastructure, making the request partially compatible
with the intent of CPP FLU 1.5.1. 

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

FINDINGS
Although the primary intent of the LDMU district is to provide for a mix of
neighborhood-scale retail sales, services, and professional offices with greater dwelling
unit density and diversity than the Low Density Residential district, and the proposed
amendment to LDMU would allow for the proposed use, the parcel is currently part of a
platted residential subdivision, First Harvesters Homes.

The parcel is located adjacent to Hwy 297A, designated as a major collector urban
roadway; the surrounded intensities and densities are primarily low-density residential
development. The applicant did not provide documented compatibility analysis for the
location criteria requirement for new proposed commercial development in LDMU, as
stated in Section 3-2.6.e, numbers 1 thru 5;  therefore, the request is not consistent
with the stated intent and purpose of the Land Development Code (LDC).

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses 
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities and conditions
and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such
that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all



permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
Within the 500' radius area, all properties are within the LDR zoning district. There are
27 vacant residential parcels, 32 single-family residences, seven mobile homes, one
church and one improved agricultural parcel. The location criteria standards in the LDC
provide a degree of protection for residential uses, ensuring that any proposed
non-residential uses could in-time be compatible and complimentary with the low-density
character of the district. The proposed amendment is not compatible with the
surrounding existing uses in the area.   
During the site visit, staff did observed the existence of a commercial grade exhaust vent
on the structure roof and also noticed the mural sign on the front wall of the current
structure. 

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions 
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment would not result in a logical and orderly development
pattern. The LDMU district is intended to rely on a pattern of well-connected streets and
provide for the separation of suburban uses from more dense and intense urban uses.
Based on the 500' radius analysis, except for the existing religious structure, the
remaining existing densities and intensities are all residential in nature; the development
pattern of the area continues to be suburban in nature. Approval of the amendment
would create an isolated parcel with increased uses and intensities adjacent to low
density residential development within the boundaries of a platted subdivision.
Inspection of the surrounding parcels and uses does not support the transitional
character of the LDMU zoning district.   

Criterion f., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Effect on natural environment
Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not 



indicated on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan
Review process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse
impact on the natural environment.

Attachments
Working Case File



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2017-13 
 



M US COGEE R D WAS HINGTON ST
RO

CK
Y

AV
E

MORRIS AVE

N HIGHWAY 29

WOO DL AND ST

N
HIGHWAY

29

P A
CE

P K
W

Y
PA

CE
PK

W
Y

BOOKER ST

HEATON
RD

JONAH ST

ROB INSON ST
TA

Y LO
R

ST

NO
W

AK
 R

D

W E B
B

ST

CA
LL

OW
AY

 S
T

JA CO B S

W
A Y

PINE ST

MINTZLN

RA
NS

OM
 S

T

L INCOLN ST

CA
RR

OL
L

CL
AR

K 
RD

STINNIS
ST

W
EG

NE
R

AV
E

BO
OT

H
AV

E

E PA
RK

LN

HO
ME

LA

ND

AV
E

RO
BI

NS
ON

 S
T

GR
IG

GS
ST

J E S SE

D R

UP
LA

ND
W

OO
D S

RD

BO
OK

ER
LN

GAS T ONL N

CO
UL

TE
R

AV
E

BO
OK

ER
AV

E

PERDIDO RD

W AREHAM
WAY

ODOM
RD

RO
BI

NS
ON

ST
BIBBSRD

UPLAND RD

Q UA
RT

E R
S

RD

T AYLOR S T

JO
HN

DE
ER

E 
LN

VAUGHN ST

HICKS S T

JACOBSWAY

CAL

L O W A Y
ST

HIGHWAY
297A

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD

0 1,000 2,000 3,000
Ft

Z-2017-13
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



EL
LI

NG
TO

N 
ST

BOOKER ST

LINCOLN ST

LDR

LDR

LDR LDR

LDR

Rec

Ind

LDR

LDR

LDRLDR

WASHINGTON ST

WEB
B 

ST

BOOKER ST

W
EB

B
ST

CA
LL

OW
AY

 S
T

EL
LI

NG
TO

N 
ST

LINCOLN ST LO
UI

S 
ST

HIGHWAY 297ACALL OW AY ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD

0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2017-13
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



EL
LI

NG
TO

N 
ST

BOOKER ST

LINCOLN ST

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

I

REC

MU-S
MU-S

MU-SMU-S

MU-SMU-S

MU-S
WASHINGTON ST

WEB
B 

ST

BOOKER ST

W
EB

B
ST

CA
LL

OW
AY

 S
T

EL
LI

NG
TO

N 
ST

LINCOLN ST LO
UI

S 
ST

HIGHWAY 297ACALL OW AY ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD

0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2017-13
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



EL
LI

NG
TO

N 
ST

BOOKER ST

LINCOLN ST

WASHINGTON ST

WEB
B 

ST

BOOKER ST

W
EB

B
ST

CA
LL

OW
AY

 S
T

EL
LI

NG
TO

N 
ST

LINCOLN ST LO
UI

S 
ST

HIGHWAY 297ACALLOWAY ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD

0 200 400 600
Ft

Z-2017-13
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

IMPROV AG

IMPROV AG

CHURCH

SFRSFR

SFR

MH

VAC
RES VAC

RES

VAC
RES VAC

RES

VAC
RESSFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR

VAC
RES

SFR
SFR

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

SFR

VAC
RES

SFR
SFR

SFR

MH
SFR

SFR
SFR

VAC
RES

VAC
RESVAC

RES VAC
RES

SFR

SFR
SFR
SFR

SFR
MH
MH

SFR
SFR

VAC
RES

VAC
RES MH

MH
VAC
RESVAC

RES

SFR
SFR

MH

SFR
SFR

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

SFR

SFR
SFR
SFR



LOU IS
S T

BOOKER ST

HIGHW
AY

297A
L INCOLN ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD

0 50 100 150
Ft

Z-2017-13
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



EL
LI

NG
TO

N 
ST

BOOKER ST

LINCOLN ST

CANTONMENT

CANTONMENT

CANTONMENT

CANTONMENT

WASHINGTON ST

WEB
B 

ST

BOOKER ST

W
EB

B
ST

CA
LL

OW
AY

 S
T

EL
LI

NG
TO

N 
ST

LINCOLN ST LO
UI

S 
ST

HIGHWAY 297ACALL OW AY ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD

0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2017-13
CRA MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



Looking East across Louis Street



Looking North 
onto Louis 
Street



Looking 
Northwest 
from 
Property



Looking 
South from 
Property



Looking 
Southeast 
onto Hwy 
297A



Looking West onto Property from Louis St. 
Note: Commercial vent system



Looking 
West onto 
Property



Existing 
commercial 
mural sign

















Recorded in Public Records 09/26/2008 at 10:30 AM OR Book 6380 Page 1021,
Instrument #2008072943, Ernie Lee Magaha Clerk of the Circuit Court Escambia
County, FL Recording $18.50 Deed Stamps $455.00

Prepared By:
James C. Taylor
Taylor & Van Matre, P.A.
4300 Bayou Blvd., Suite #16
Penaacoia, Florida 32503
File Number: TVM08-636

CLE

CERTIFIED TO BE ATRUE COP^ OF THE
ORIGINAL ON FILE IN THIS OFFICE

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICfAL SEAL
PAM CHILDERS ^m..,,,,

)FTHE CIRCUIT COURT&COMPTROLLER
ESCr^BJ^tMT^ECORjfciA '*'\Q&

PERSONALREPRESENTATIVE'S ])EE
(INDIVIDUAL - With Full Warrantie^ATE:

This PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE'S DEED, is executed this September 22,2008
by

ALMA JEAN STRONG a/k/a ALMA STRONG and MICHAEL ANTHONY RILEY a/k/a MICHAEL RILEY,
Co-Personal Representatives of the Estate of PENKIE LEE PUGH, deceased, (Escambia County, Florida, Probate
Case No. 2006-CP-000921)
Whose post office address is
593 BOCKER STREET, CANTONMENT, FL 32533
hereinafter called the GRANTOR, to

HATTIE M. McGARY

whose post office address is
P.O. BOX 158, CANTONMENT, FL 32533
hereinafter called the GRANTEE:

(Wherever used herein the terms "GRANTOR" and "GRANTEE" include all the parties to this instrument and
the heirs, legal representatives and assigns of individuals.and the successors and assigns of corporations.)

WITNESSETH: That the GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the sum of $10.00 and other valuable considerations,
receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, hereby grants, bargains, sells, aliens, remises, releases, conveys and confirms
unto the GRANTEE, all that certain land situate in Escambia County, Florida, viz:

Lot 3, Block L, First Harvester's Homes, according to the plat thereof, recorded in Plat Book 2, Page 44, Official
Records Book 126, Page 367, of the Public Records of Escambia County, Florida.
Parcel ID Number: 161N3110000030123

The above-described property is not the consitutional homestead of the Grantors.
SUBJECT TO covenants, conditions, restrictions, reservations, limitations, easements and agreements of record, ifany;
taxes and assessments for the year and subsequent years; and to all applicable zoning ordinances and/or restrict
prohibitions imposed by governmental authorities, if any ** SEE ABUTTING ROADWAY AGREEMENT ATTACHED
HERETO FOR ADDITIONAL RESTRICTION.

TOGETHER with all the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the same in fee simple forever.

ANDTHE GRANTORhereby covenants with said GRANTEEthat except as above noted, the GRANTOR is lawfully
seized of said land in fee simple; that the GRANTOR has good right and lawful authority to sell and convey said land;
that the GRANTORhereby fully warrants the title to said land and will defend the same against the lawful claims of all
persons whomsoever.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, GRANTOR has signed and scaled these presents the date set forth above.

SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE FOLLOWING WITNESSES:

Signed, sealed and delivered in our presence:

Witness Printed Name I. Tffljli^

(£t,
ALMAJEAN STRONC/a/k/a ALMA STRONp, Co-Personal
Representative

MfCHAEL ANTHONY
Co-Personal Reprcsentati

.(Seal)
HAEL RILEY,

State of FLORIDA

County of ESCAMBIA
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENTwas acknowledged before me thisSeptember 22, 2008 by:ALMA JEAN
STRONG a/k/a ALMA STRONG, Co-Personal Representative an^fMICFLXEL ANTHONY RLLEY a/k/a
MICHAEL RILEY, Co-Personal Representative who arepersonalis known Uyrne or who have produced Drivers
License as identification and who did not take at

rt*/N>*'WWWi/vvyvwvvw\.',
;:<!> JAMES C. TAYLOR S

m
UWl'.-vw.vw^,ft/VN» w%-.

1LIC

My Commission Expires







   
Planning Board-Rezoning   8. A.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  

Agenda Item:
Zoning/FLU Inconsistencies Discussion.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 1 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-_______ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 

PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 5 

AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ZONING REGULATIONS, 6 

ARTICLE 1, GENERAL PROVISIONS, AND ARTICLE 2, MAINLAND 7 

DISTRICTS, TO CLARIFY ZONING DISTRICT SUBORDINATION TO 8 

FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORIES, TO CLARIFY FUTURE LAND USE 9 

CATEGORY LIMITS ON RESIDENTIAL USES WITHIN THE HEAVY 10 

COMMERCIAL AND LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (HC/LI) ZONING DISTRICT, 11 

AND TO LIMIT NON-SUBURBAN USES OF THE HC/LI DISTRICTS 12 

WHEN LOCATED WITHIN THE MIXED-USE SUBURBAN (MU-S) 13 

FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 14 

PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 15 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 16 

  17 

  WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 163, Florida 18 

Statutes, directed local governments to each adopt a comprehensive plan that provides 19 

the principles, guidelines, standards, and strategies for orderly and balanced future 20 

development within their jurisdictions, that includes a future land use element designating 21 

the future general distribution, location, and extent of the uses of land, and that provides 22 

meaningful guidelines for the content of more detailed land development and use 23 

regulations; and 24 

 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners has, within the 25 

future land use element of the adopted Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, 26 

established future land use categories and related policies to form future land use 27 

patterns that encourage compact and mixed-use urban development, support transit, 28 

provide a clear separation between urban, suburban, and rural areas, and provide 29 

protection for existing agricultural areas; and 30 

 WHEREAS, the Board has, within the regulations of the county’s Land 31 

Development Code, established one or more zoning districts containing specific and 32 

detailed provisions necessary to implement the established purpose and the general 33 

distribution, location, and extent of uses of each future land use category within the 34 

Comprehensive Plan; and 35 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that the consolidation of zoning districts included in 36 

the April 16, 2015, adoption of the Land Development Code did not eliminate all 37 

occurrences of zoning districts that appear to allow uses, density, or other intensities of 38 

use not authorized by the prevailing purposes and associated provisions of applicable 39 

future land use categories; and 40 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that there are numerous occurrences of Heavy 41 

Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) zoning appearing to allow incompatible and 42 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 2 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

otherwise inappropriate non-suburban land uses and intensities of use within the 1 

Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) future land use category; and 2 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that the savings clause established within the LDC 3 

subsequent to adoption of the consolidated zoning districts does not remedy land uses 4 

or intensities of use not authorized by the applicable future land use category, regardless 5 

of prior zoning; and 6 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that zoning district subordination to future land use 7 

categories is fundamental to the implementation of all future land use categories required 8 

within and established by the Comprehensive Plan; 9 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 10 

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 11 

 12 

Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 13 

Code of Escambia County, Chapter 3, Zoning Regulations, Article 1, General 14 

Provisions, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 15 

stricken are deletions): 16 

Sec. 3-1.3 Zoning and future land use. 17 

(a) Generally.  Together the future land use (FLU) categories of the Comprehensive 18 

Plan and zoning districts of the LDC form the primary location-specific land use 19 

regulations of the county.  Within each FLU, one or more zoning districts implement 20 

and further refine the distribution and extent of allowable land uses.  The 21 

identification or classification of a use or activity as allowed by the applicable future 22 

land use category and zoning district does not constitute the required approval to 23 

carry out that use or activity.  Consistency with FLU and zoning only indicates that, 24 

upon appropriate review and approval for compliance with the provisions of the LDC, 25 

the use or activity may be established, reestablished or expanded.   26 

(b) Official maps.  The areas of the county subject to each future land use category 27 

established within the Comprehensive Plan are recorded on the Official Future Land 28 

Use Map of Escambia County.  Similarly, the areas of each zoning district 29 

established in this chapter are recorded on the Official Zoning Map of Escambia 30 

County.  The zoning map is adopted and incorporated here by reference and 31 

declared to be part of the LDC.  The information shown on the map has the same 32 

force and effect as the text of the LDC.  Both official maps are represented and 33 

maintained digitally in the county’s Geographic Information System (GIS) and shall 34 

be accessible to the public via the county’s website, www.myescambia.com.   35 

(c) Boundary determinations. If uncertainty exists regarding the boundary of any FLU 36 

category or zoning district, the boundary shall be determined by the Planning Official 37 

in consideration of the following: 38 

(1) Natural features.  A boundary that reflects a clear intent to follow a particular 39 

natural feature such as a stream or shoreline shall be understood to follow the 40 

http://www.myescambia.com/


 

PB 08-01-17 Page 3 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

feature as it actually exists and move with the feature should it move as a result 1 

of natural processes.  2 

(2) Manmade features.  A boundary shown on the official map as approximately 3 

following a right-of-way, parcel line, section line, or other readily identified 4 

manmade feature shall be understood to coincide with that feature.   5 

(3) Parallel or extension. A boundary shown on the official map as approximately 6 

parallel to a natural or manmade feature shall be understood as being actually 7 

parallel to that feature; or if an apparent extension of such a feature, then 8 

understood as an actual extension. 9 

(4) Metes and bounds.  If a boundary splits an existing lot or parcel, any metes and 10 

bounds description used to establish the boundary shall be used to determine its 11 

location. 12 

(5) Scaling.  If the specific location of a boundary cannot otherwise be determined, it 13 

shall be determined by scaling the mapped boundary’s distance from other 14 

features shown on the official map. 15 

(d) Split parcels.  The adopted zoning districts and FLU categories are parcel-based, 16 

but their boundaries are not prohibited from dividing a parcel.  For parcels split by 17 

these boundaries, including overlay district boundaries, only that portion of a parcel 18 

within a district or category is subject to its requirements.  Where a zoning district 19 

boundary divides a parcel that is ten acres or less in size and not part of a platted 20 

residential subdivision, the zoning district of the larger portion may be applied to the 21 

entire parcel if requested by the parcel owner, consistent with the applicable FLU 22 

category, and in compliance with the location criteria of the requested zoning.  23 

Zoning map amendment is otherwise required to apply a single district to a split-24 

zoned parcel.  25 

(e) Land with no designations. No zoning is adopted for military bases, state college 26 

and university campuses, and other such lands for which the regulations of the LDC 27 

are not intended.  Public rights-of-way have no designated zoning or future land use, 28 

but where officially vacated right-of-way is added to abutting parcels the future land 29 

use categories and zoning districts applicable to the abutting parcels shall apply to 30 

their additions at the time of the vacation approval, with no further action required by 31 

the county. 32 

Land that otherwise has no adopted zoning, and is not within an area determined by 33 

the county to be excluded from zoning, shall have zoning established by zoning map 34 

amendment.  If the land also has no approved future land use category, one shall be 35 

adopted according to the process prescribed for such amendments prior to, or 36 

concurrently with, Board of County Commissioners (BCC) approval of the zoning 37 

map amendment.  Changes to the boundaries of adopted FLU categories or zoning 38 

districts, whether owner initiated or county initiated, are amendments to the official 39 

county maps and are authorized only through the processes prescribed in Chapter 2 40 

for such amendments. 41 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 4 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

(f) Future land use designations.  The future land use categories established within 1 

the Comprehensive Plan and referenced in the LDC are designated by the following 2 

abbreviations and names: 3 

AG  Agriculture 4 

RC  Rural Community 5 

MU-S  Mixed-Use Suburban 6 

MU-U  Mixed-Use Urban 7 

C  Commercial 8 

I  Industrial 9 

P  Public 10 

REC  Recreation 11 

CON  Conservation 12 

MU-PK Mixed-Use Perdido Key 13 

MU-PB Mixed-Use Pensacola Beach 14 

(g) Zoning district designations. The zoning districts established within this chapter 15 

are designated by the following groups, abbreviations and names: 16 

(1) Residential.  The purposes of the following districts are primary residential: 17 

RR  Rural Residential 18 

LDR Low Density Residential 19 

MDR Med. Density Residential 20 

HDR High Density Residential 21 

LDR-PK Low Density Residential - Perdido Key  22 

MDR-PK Medium Density Residential - Perdido Key 23 

HDR-PK High Density Residential - Perdido Key 24 

LDR-PB Low Density Residential - Pensacola Beach 25 

MDR-PB Medium Density Residential - Pensacola Beach 26 

HDR-PB High Density Residential - Pensacola Beach 27 

(2) Non-residential. The purposes of the following districts are primarily mixed-use 28 

and non-residential: 29 

a. Mixed-use.  The mixed-use districts are: 30 

RMU  Rural Mixed-use 31 

LDMU  Low Density Mixed-use 32 

HDMU High Density Mixed-use 33 

MDR/C-PB Medium Density Residential & Commercial - Pensacola 34 

Beach 35 

HDR/C-PB High Density Residential & Commercial - Pensacola Beach 36 

b. Commercial and industrial.  The commercial and industrial districts are: 37 

Com  Commercial 38 

Com-PK Commercial - Perdido Key 39 

CC-PK Commercial Core - Perdido Key 40 

CG-PK Commercial Gateway - Perdido Key 41 

GR-PB General Retail - Pensacola Beach 42 

Rec/R-PB Recreation Retail - Pensacola Beach 43 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 5 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

CH-PB Commercial Hotel - Pensacola Beach 1 

HC/LI  Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial 2 

Ind  Industrial 3 

c. Other.  The other non-residential districts are: 4 

Agr  Agricultural 5 

Rec  Recreation 6 

Con  Conservation 7 

Pub  Public 8 

PR-PK Planned Resort - Perdido Key 9 

Rec-PK Recreation - Perdido Key 10 

PR-PB Preservation - Pensacola Beach 11 

Con/Rec-PB Conservation and Recreation - Pensacola Beach 12 

G/C-PB Government and Civic - Pensacola Beach 13 

(h) ConsistencyZoning implementation of FLU.  The zoning districts of this chapter 14 

are established to implement the future land use categories adopted in Chapter 7 of 15 

the Comprehensive Plan.  One or more districts may implement the range of allowed 16 

uses of each FLU, but only at densities and intensities of use consistent with the 17 

established purposes and standards of the category.  The Perdido Key districts 18 

(Article 4) implement the MU-PK category and areas of the Conservation and 19 

Recreation categories applicable to Perdido Key.  The Pensacola Beach districts 20 

(Article 5) implement the MU-PB category and areas of the Conservation and 21 

Recreation categories applicable to Santa Rosa Island.  The mainland districts 22 

(Article 2) implement only those FLU categories prescribed within the regulations of 23 

each district.  In any conflict between the existing zoning of a parcel and its 24 

applicable FLU, the provisions of the future land use prevail, subject to any 25 

confirmation of vested rights.  Such conflicts may be resolved through the zoning 26 

and FLU map amendment processes prescribed in Article 7 of Chapter 2.  However, 27 

no future rezoning to a mainland district is authorized if not prescribed by the district 28 

for the applicable FLU as summarized in the following table: The zoning of a parcel 29 

shall be consistent with the applicable future land use category by either directly 30 

implementing the provisions of the FLU or otherwise not being in conflict with its 31 

intent, allowable uses, density, or intensity.  All Perdido Key districts (Article 4) are 32 

consistent with the MU-PK category and all Pensacola Beach districts (Article 5) are 33 

consistent with the MU-PB category.  Mainland districts (Article 2) are consistent 34 

with FLU categories as prescribed in each district and summarized in the following 35 

table: 36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

 40 

 41 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 42 

 43 

  44 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 6 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

ZONING 
DISTRICT 

Specific 
distribution 
and extent 

of uses 

FUTURE LAND USE (FLU) CATEGORY 
General distribution and extent of uses 

AG 
max 

1du/20ac 
max 

0.25 FAR 
 

RC 
max 

2du/ac 
max 

0.25 FAR 
 

MU-S 
max 

25du/ac 
max 

1.0 FAR 

MU-U 
max 

25du/ac 
max 

2.0 FAR 

C 
Limited 

res  
max 

25du/ac 
max 

1.0 FAR 

I 
No res 
allowed 

max 
1.0 FAR 

P 
No res 
allowed 

 

REC 
No res 
allowed 

max 
0.5 FAR 

CON 
No res 
allowed 

 

Agr 
max 1du/20ac 

Yes Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses 

RR 
max 1du/4ac 

No, max 
density Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses 

RMU 
max 2du/ac 

No, max 
density Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses 

LDR 
max 4du/ac 

No, max 
density 

No, max 
density Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses 

LDMU 
max 7du/ac 

No, max 
density 

No, max 
density Yes Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses 

MDR 
max 10du/ac 

No, max 
density 

No, max 
density Yes Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses 

HDR 
max 18du/ac 

No, max 
density 

No, max 
density Yes Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses 

HDMU 
max 25du/ac 

No, max 
density 

No, max 
density Yes Yes Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses 

Com 
max 25du/ac 

No, max 
density 

No, max 
density Yes Yes Yes 

No, res 
use 

No, uses No, uses No, uses 

HC/LI 
FLU-restricted 
max 25du/ac 

No, uses No, uses No, uses Yes Yes Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses 

Ind 
No res allowed 

No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses Yes No, uses No, uses No, uses 

Rec 
No res allowed 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No, uses Yes Yes No, uses 

Con 
No res allowed 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Pub 
No res allowed 

No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses No, uses Yes Yes No, uses No, uses 

For every combination of mainland zoning district and FLU category represented by the 1 

table, “Yes” indicates the a zoning district that may be established to implement is 2 

consistent with the FLU.  “No” indicates a zoning district that does not implement the 3 

FLU and may not be established inconsistency within the FLU, primarily for the reason 4 

inconsistency noted. 5 

  6 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 7 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

Section 2.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 1 

Code of Escambia County, Chapter 3, Zoning Regulations, Article 2, Mainland Districts, 2 

is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are 3 

deletions): 4 

Sec. 3-2.11 Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (HC/LI).   5 

(a) Purpose.  The Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) district establishes 6 

appropriate areas and land use regulations for a complementary mix of industrial 7 

uses with a broad range of commercial activities. The primary intent of the district is 8 

to allow light manufacturing, large-scale wholesale and retail uses, major services, 9 

and other more intense uses than allowed in the Commercial district.  The variety 10 

and intensity of non-residential uses within the HC/LI district is limited by their 11 

compatibility with surrounding uses.  All commercial and industrial operations are 12 

limited to the confines of buildings and not allowed to produce undesirable effects on 13 

other property.  To retain adequate area for commercial and industrial activities, 14 

other uses within the district are limited. 15 

(b) Permitted uses.  Permitted uses within the HC/LI district are limited to the following 16 

but, if within the Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) future land use (FLU) category, limited 17 

to the permitted uses of the Commercial (Com) district as prescribed in the 18 

preceding section of this article: 19 

(1) Residential.  Any residential uses if outside of the Industrial (I) future land use 20 

category and, but if within the Commercial (C) FLU and not the principal single-21 

family dwelling on an existing lot of record, only as part of a predominantly 22 

commercial development, excluding new or expanded manufactured (mobile) 23 

home parks and subdivisions.  See also conditional uses in this district. 24 

(2) Retail sales.  Retail sales, including Low-THC marijuana dispensing facilities, 25 

sales of alcoholic beverages, sales of automotive fuels, and sales of new and 26 

used automobiles, motorcycles, boats, and manufactured (mobile) homes.   27 

(3) Retail services. 28 

a. Car washes, automatic or manual, full service or self-serve. 29 

b. Child care facilities. 30 

c. Hotels, motels and all other public lodging, including boarding and rooming 31 

houses. 32 

d. Personal services, including those of beauty shops, health clubs, pet 33 

groomers, dry cleaners and tattoo parlors.  34 

e. Professional services, including those of realtors, bankers, accountants, 35 

engineers, architects, dentists, physicians, and attorneys. 36 

f. Rental of automobiles, trucks, utility trailers and recreational vehicles. 37 

g. Repair services, including appliance repair, furniture refinishing and 38 

upholstery, watch and jewelry repair, small engine and motor services, and 39 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 8 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

major motor vehicle and boat service and repair, but excluding outdoor work 1 

or storage. 2 

h. Restaurants and brewpubs, including on-premises consumption of alcoholic 3 

beverages, drive-in and drive-through service, and brewpubs with the 4 

distribution of on-premises produced alcoholic beverages for off-site sales.  5 

The parcel boundary of any restaurant or brewpub with drive-in or drive-6 

through service shall be at least 200 feet from any LDR or MDR zoning 7 

district unless separated by a 50-foot or wider street right-of-way. 8 

i. Taxi and limousine services. 9 

See also conditional uses in this district. 10 

(4) Public and civic. 11 

a. Broadcast stations with satellite dishes and antennas, including towers. 12 

b. Cemeteries, including family cemeteries. 13 

c. Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and 14 

neighborhood centers. 15 

d. Educational facilities, including preschools, K-12, colleges, and vocational 16 

schools. 17 

e. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and 18 

medical assistance. 19 

f. Funeral establishments. 20 

g. Homeless shelters. 21 

h. Hospitals. 22 

i. Offices for government agencies or public utilities. 23 

j. Places of worship.  24 

k. Public utility structures, including telecommunications towers, but excluding 25 

industrial uses not otherwise permitted. 26 

See also conditional uses in this district. 27 

(5) Recreation and entertainment. 28 

a. Commercial entertainment facilities, indoor or outdoor, including movie 29 

theatres, amusement parks, and stadiums, but excluding motorsports 30 

facilities.  Carnival-type amusements shall be at least 500 feet from any 31 

residential district. Bars, nightclubs, and adult entertainment are prohibited in 32 

areas with the zoning designation HC/LI-NA or areas zoned ID-CP or ID-1 33 

prior to adoption of HC/LI zoning.   34 

b. Commercial recreation facilities, passive or active, including those for walking, 35 

hiking, bicycling, camping, recreational vehicles, swimming, skateboarding, 36 

bowling, court games, field sports, and golf, but excluding off-highway vehicle 37 

uses and outdoor shooting ranges. Campgrounds and recreational vehicle 38 

parks require a minimum lot area of five acres. 39 

c. Marinas, private and commercial. 40 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 9 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

d. Parks, with or without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting. 1 

See also conditional uses in this district. 2 

(6) Industrial and related. 3 

a. Light industrial uses, including research and development, printing and 4 

binding, distribution and wholesale warehousing, and manufacturing, all 5 

completely within the confines of buildings and without adverse off-site 6 

impacts.  7 

b. Marinas, industrial. 8 

c. Microbreweries, microdistilleries, and microwineries, except in areas with the 9 

zoning designation HC/LI-NA or areas zoned ID-CP or ID-1 prior to adoption 10 

of HC/LI zoning. 11 

See also conditional uses in this district. 12 

(7) Agricultural and related. 13 

a. Food produced primarily for personal consumption by the producer, but no 14 

farm animals. 15 

b. Nurseries and garden centers, including adjoining outdoor storage or display 16 

of plants. 17 

c. Veterinary clinics, excluding outside kennels. 18 

See also conditional uses in this district. 19 

(8) Other uses. 20 

a. Billboards structures, excluding areas zoned ID-CP, GBD, or GID prior to 21 

adoption of HC/LI zoning. 22 

b. Building or construction trades shops and warehouses, including on-site 23 

outside storage. 24 

c. Bus leasing and rental facilities. 25 

d. Deposit boxes for donation of used items when placed as an accessory 26 

structure on the site of a charitable organization. 27 

e. Outdoor adjacent display of plants by garden shops and nurseries. 28 

f. Outdoor sales. 29 

g. Outdoor storage of trailered boats and operable recreational vehicles, 30 

excluding repair, overhaul or salvage activities. 31 

h. Parking garages and lots, commercial. 32 

i. Sales and outdoor display of prefabricated storage sheds. 33 

j. Self-storage facilities, including vehicle rental as an accessory use. 34 

(c) Conditional uses.  Through the conditional use process prescribed in Chapter 2, 35 

the BOA, or the BCC as noted, may conditionally allow the following uses within the 36 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 10 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

HC/LI district but, if within the Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) future land use category,  1 

the conditional uses are limited to those of the Commercial (Com) district as 2 

prescribed in the preceding section of this article: 3 

(1) Residential.  Caretaker residences not among the permitted uses of the district 4 

and for permitted non-residential uses. 5 

(1) Retail services.  Restaurants not among the permitted uses of the district.  6 

(2) Public and civic. Cinerators. 7 

(3) Recreation and entertainment. 8 

a. Motorsports facilities on lots 20 acres or larger. 9 

b. Off-highway vehicle commercial recreation facilities on lots 20 acres or larger. 10 

c. Shooting ranges, outdoor. 11 

(4) Industrial and related. 12 

a. Asphalt and concrete batch plants if within the Industrial (I) future land use 13 

category and within areas zoned GID prior to adoption of HC/LI zoning. 14 

b. Borrow pits and reclamation activities 20 acres minimum and (subject to local 15 

permit and development review requirements per Escambia County Code of 16 

Ordinances, Part I, Chapter 42, article VIII, and land use regulations in Part 17 

III, the Land Development Code, chapter 4.) *Borrow pits are prohibited on 18 

land zoned GBD, GID, and WMU prior to the adoption of the HC/LI zoning. 19 

c. Salvage yards not otherwise requiring approval as solid waste processing 20 

facilities. 21 

d. Solid waste processing facilities, including solid waste collection points, solid 22 

waste transfer facilities, materials recovery facilities, recovered materials 23 

processing facilities, recycling facilities and operations, resource recovery 24 

facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants. 25 

The conditional use determination for any of these solid waste facilities shall 26 

be made by the BCC in lieu of any hearing before the BOA.  The applicant 27 

shall submit a site boundary survey, development plan, description of 28 

anticipated operations, and evidence that establishes each of the following 29 

conditions in addition to those prescribed in Chapter 2: 30 

1. Trucks have access to and from the site from adequately wide collector or 31 

arterial streets and do not use local residential streets. 32 

2. The scale, intensity, and operation of the use will not generate 33 

unreasonable noise, traffic, objectionable odors, dust, or other potential 34 

nuisances or hazards to contiguous properties. 35 

3. The processing of materials will be completely within enclosed buildings 36 

unless otherwise approved by the BCC. 37 

4. The plan includes appropriate practices to protect adjacent land and 38 

resources, minimize erosion, and treat stormwater; landscaping and 39 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 11 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

buffering for adjacent uses; hours of operation; methods to comply with 1 

maximum permissible noise levels; means of access control to prevent 2 

illegal dumping; and plans for materials storage. 3 

(5) Agricultural and related. Kennels or animal shelters not interior to veterinary 4 

clinics. 5 

(6) Other uses. 6 

a. Structures of permitted uses exceeding the district structure height limit. 7 

b. Heliports. 8 

(d) Site and building requirements. The following site and building requirements apply 9 

to uses within the HC/LI district: 10 

(1) Density.  A maximum density of 25 dwelling units per acre.  Lodging unit density 11 

is not limited by zoning. 12 

(2) Floor area ratio. A maximum floor area ratio of 1.0 within the Commercial (C) 13 

and Industrial (I) future land use categories, and 2.0 within Mixed-Use Urban 14 

(MU-U). 15 

(3) Structure height.  A maximum structure height of 150 feet above highest 16 

adjacent grade. 17 

(4) Lot area. No minimum lot area unless prescribed by use. 18 

(5) Lot width.  No minimum lot width required by zoning. 19 

(6) Lot coverage. Minimum pervious lot coverage of 15 percent (85 percent 20 

maximum semi-impervious and impervious cover) for all uses.  A maximum 75 21 

percent of lot area occupied by principal and accessory buildings on lots of non-22 

residential uses. 23 

(7) Structure setbacks.  For all principal structures, minimum setbacks are: 24 

a. Front and rear.  Fifteen feet in both front and rear. 25 

b. Sides.  Ten feet on each side, including any group of attached townhouses.  26 

For structures exceeding 35 feet above highest adjacent grade, an additional 27 

two feet for each additional 10 feet in height. 28 

c. Corner lots.  Will have one front setback and one side setback. 29 

(8) Other requirements. 30 

a. Access.  For any industrial use south of Well Line Road, site access shall be 31 

provided by curb cuts on an arterial or collector street.  Alternatively, a private 32 

or public street may link the site to an arterial or collector, provided that the 33 

private or public street does not traverse a residential subdivision or 34 

predominantly residential neighborhood between the site and the arterial or 35 

collector street.  36 

b. Chapters 4 and 5.  Refer to chapters 4 and 5 for additional development 37 

regulations and standards. 38 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 12 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the HC/LI district 1 

that are not part of a planned unit development or not identified as exempt by district 2 

regulations shall be on parcels that satisfy at least one of the following location 3 

criteria:  4 

(1) Proximity to intersection.  Along an arterial street and within one-quarter mile 5 

of its intersection with an arterial street. 6 

(2) Site design.  Along an arterial street, no more than one-half mile from its 7 

intersection with an arterial street, and all of the following site design conditions: 8 

a. Not abutting a RR, LDR or MDR zoning district 9 

b. Any intrusion into a recorded residential subdivision is limited to a corner lot 10 

c. A system of service roads or shared access is provided to the maximum 11 

extent feasible given the lot area, lot shape, ownership patterns, and site and 12 

street characteristics. 13 

d. Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing 14 

the more intensive elements of the use, such as solid waste dumpsters and 15 

truck loading/unloading areas, furthest from the residential uses. 16 

e. Location in an area where already established non-residential uses are 17 

otherwise consistent with the HC/LI, and where the new use would constitute 18 

infill development of similar intensity as the conforming development on 19 

surrounding parcels.  Additionally, the location would promote compact 20 

development and not contribute to or promote strip commercial development. 21 

(3) Documented compatibility.  A compatibility analysis prepared by the applicant 22 

provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances regarding the 23 

parcel or use that were not anticipated by the alternative criteria, and the 24 

proposed use will be able to achieve long-term compatibility with existing and 25 

potential uses.  Additionally, the following conditions exist: 26 

a. The parcel has not been rezoned by the landowner from the mixed-use, 27 

commercial, or industrial zoning assigned by the county. 28 

b. If the parcel is within a county redevelopment district, the use will be 29 

consistent with the district’s adopted redevelopment plan, as reviewed and 30 

recommended by the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA). 31 

(f) Rezoning to HC/LI. 32 

(1) Generally.  Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial zoning may be established 33 

only within the Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U), Commercial (C), or Industrial (I) future 34 

land use categories.  The district is appropriate to provide transitions between 35 

areas zoned or used for commercial and areas zoned or used for industrial.  The 36 

district is suitable for areas able to receive bulk deliveries by truck in locations 37 

served by major transportation networks and able to avoid undesirable effects on 38 

nearby property and residential uses.  Rezoning to HC/LI is subject to the same 39 

location criteria as any non-residential use proposed within the HC/LI district. 40 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 13 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

(2) HC/LI-NA designation.  Any applicant for rezoning to the HC/LI zoning district 1 

may request a HC/LI-NA designation prohibiting the subsequent establishment of 2 

any microbreweries, microdistilleries, microwineries, bars, nightclubs, or adult 3 

entertainment uses on the rezoned property.  The request shall be in the form of 4 

a notarized affidavit that acknowledges this use restriction and affirms that it is a 5 

voluntary request.  Once approved according to the rezoning process of Chapter 6 

2, the HC/LI-NA zoning designation and its prohibitions shall apply to the 7 

property, regardless of ownership, unless the parcel is rezoned. 8 

 9 

Section 3. Severability. 10 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 11 

unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 12 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 13 

 14 

Section 4. Inclusion in Code.  15 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 16 

Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2016); and that the sections, 17 

subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered and 18 

the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “chapter,” or such other appropriate 19 

word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 20 

 21 

Section 5. Effective Date.  22 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 23 

 24 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 25 

 26 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 27 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 28 

  29 

By: ______________________________ 30 

           D. B. Underhill, Chairman 31 

 32 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             33 

    Clerk of the Circuit Court 34 

 35 

  By: __________________________    36 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 14 
Re: HC/LI zoning within MU-S 
Draft PB discussion 

          Deputy Clerk  1 

(SEAL) 2 

 3 

ENACTED: 4 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    5 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  6 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   8. B.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  

Agenda Item:
Clustering Discussion.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 1 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-_______ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 

PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 5 

AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ZONING REGULATIONS, 6 

ARTICLE 1, GENERAL PROVISIONS, TO ALLOW MODIFICATION OF 7 

ZONING DISTRICT SITE AND BUILDING REQUIREMENTS FOR 8 

DWELLING UNIT CLUSTERING OR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, 9 

TO ELIMINATE EXISTING RESIDENTIAL DENSITY BONUSES, AND 10 

TO ESTABLISH PROVISIONS FOR CLUSTERING DWELLING UNITS; 11 

AMENDING CHAPTER 4, LOCATION AND USE REGULATIONS, 12 

ARTICLE 5, NATURAL RESOURCES, AND ARTICLE 6, HISTORICAL 13 

AND ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES, TO REFERENCE 14 

CLUSTERING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 15 

PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR 16 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 17 

  18 

 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida 19 

Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed 20 

to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and   21 

 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners has, within 22 

the regulations of the county’s Land Development Code, established zoning districts 23 

which set residential densities appropriate to the purposes of the districts and forms of 24 

dwelling units permitted therein; and, 25 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that the presence of wetlands, floodways, and other 26 

protected county resources within development parcels may reduce developable area 27 

and the resulting number of dwelling units possible under the site and building 28 

requirements of the applicable zoning; and, 29 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that, for development parcels containing protected 30 

resources, flexibility in site and building requirements can aid in the clustering of 31 

dwelling units to more fully develop available residential density outside of such 32 

resources; and, 33 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that, since the April 16, 2015, adoption of the Land 34 

Development Code, amendments to establish comprehensive dwelling unit clustering 35 

provisions are beneficial to the public for both residential development and resource 36 

protection; 37 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 38 

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 39 

  40 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 2 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 41 

Code of Escambia County, Chapter 3, Zoning Regulations, Article 1, General 42 

Provisions, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 43 

stricken are deletions): 44 

Sec. 3-1.5 Site and building requirements. 45 

(a) Generally. Each zoning district establishes its own site and building requirements 46 

which define physical limits to the development of district parcels.  These 47 

requirements, in combination with other district provisions, the use and location 48 

regulations of Chapter 4, and the general development standards of Chapter 5, 49 

define the limits for all development within the district. 50 

(b) Modifications.  Except as may be authorized in this article for the clustering of 51 

dwelling units, modificationsVariances to the strict application of site and building 52 

requirements may only be granted according to the compliance review processes 53 

prescribed in Chapter 2, and only if the variances maintain the stated purposes of 54 

the applicable zoning district and are not otherwise excluded by provisions of the 55 

LDC. 56 

(c) Street frontage.  For the application of site and building requirements and other 57 

LDC provisions to any lot with no street frontage the Planning Official shall 58 

determine a front lot line in consideration of lot orientation, access, and other 59 

relevant conditions.  The Planning Official shall also determine the appropriate rear 60 

lot line for any lot with multiple street frontages. 61 

(d) Density.  The number of dwelling or lodging units allowed within a parcel is 62 

determined by the product of the total development parcel area and the maximum 63 

density allowed by the applicable zoning district. When the calculated number of 64 

allowable units for a parcel results in a fraction greater than or equal to 0.5 units, 65 

rounding to the next whole number is permitted to allow a maximum of one 66 

additional unit.  Regardless of the maximum density allowed, each existing lot of 67 

record is vested for a single-family dwelling as the principal use. 68 

(e) Lot width and area. All new lots shall provide the minimum width and area required 69 

by the applicable zoning, except that parcels created for public utilities or preserved 70 

for recreation, conservation, or open space need only have width sufficient for 71 

access to that limited use. Any existing lot of record that contains less width or area 72 

than required by the applicable zoning district may be used for any use allowed 73 

within that district if the use complies with all other applicable regulations, including 74 

buffering and use-specific minimum lot area.   75 

(f) Lot coverage.  The maximum amount of impervious and semi-impervious coverage 76 

allowed for any lot is established by the minimum percent pervious lot coverage 77 

required by the applicable zoning district. The amount allowed by zoning remains 78 

subject to other limitations of the LDC and any approved stormwater management 79 

plan for the lot.  80 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 3 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

(g) Setbacks and yards.  The minimum setbacks and yards for structures are those 81 

required by the applicable zoning district or as otherwise may be stipulated in SRIA 82 

lease agreements for lands on Pensacola Beach. 83 

(1) Nonconformance.  For a structure that is nonconforming with regard to any 84 

zoning required setback, a structural alteration, enlargement, or extension to it 85 

that creates no greater encroachment by distance into the substandard setback 86 

is not considered an increase in nonconformance and does not require a 87 

variance.   88 

(2) Accessory structures. Accessory structures shall be limited to side and rear 89 

yards and be at least five feet from any interior side or rear lot line except where 90 

specifically allowed as encroachments.   Accessory dwellings shall be limited to 91 

the setbacks required for the principal dwelling.  92 

(3) Distance between dwellings.  Where the applicable zoning district allows more 93 

than one dwelling on a single lot, the minimum horizontal distance between such 94 

dwellings shall not be less than twice the side yard distance required by the 95 

district, and the minimum distance between any structures shall not be less than 96 

the minimum required by the Florida Building Code. 97 

(4) Encroachments by building features.  Every part of a required yard shall be 98 

open from its lowest point to the sky, unobstructed except for the ordinary 99 

projection of sills, belt courses, cornices, buttresses, awnings, eaves and similar 100 

building features.  No such projection shall extend more than 24 inches into any 101 

yard, except roof overhangs, awnings, outside stairways, and balconies which 102 

may extend up to 48 inches into any yard provided the building setback is 103 

otherwise at least 10 feet   104 

(5) Encroachment of porch or terrace.  An open, unenclosed and uncovered 105 

paved terrace or a covered porch may extend into the required front yard no 106 

more than 10 feet.  107 

(h) Structure heights. The maximum structure heights allowed by the applicable 108 

zoning district are modified by the following: 109 

(1) Agricultural structures.  Structures such as cotton gins, granaries, silos, and 110 

windmills associated with permitted agricultural uses may exceed the district 111 

height limits if not in conflict with any applicable airport or airfield height 112 

restrictions. 113 

(2) Rooftop structures.  The district height limits do not apply to belfries, chimneys, 114 

church spires, cooling towers, elevator bulkheads, flag poles, television reception 115 

antennae, roof-mounted tanks, mechanical equipment rooms, or similar rooftop 116 

structures that comply with all of the following conditions: 117 

a. They do not separately or in combination with other rooftop structures exceed 118 

10 percent of the horizontal roof area. 119 

b. They do not exceed applicable airport or airfield height restrictions. 120 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 4 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

c. They do not exceed otherwise applicable height limitations by more than 15 121 

feet or 10 percent of actual building height, whichever is greater. 122 

Sec. 3-1.7 Density bonuses.  123 

(a) Generally. A system for residential density bonuses is established to provide an 124 

incentive for the private sector to voluntarily achieve some of the policies of the 125 

Comprehensive Plan.  Within system limits, increased densities are allowed for 126 

properties in the LDR, MDR, HDR, HDMU, and Perdido Key zoning districts.  127 

Proposed development that exceeds LDC requirements and standards is eligible for 128 

density bonuses based on the options established in this section. 129 

(b) Point system.  For each point earned in compliance with the options of the density 130 

bonus system, a 0.4 percent increase is authorized in the maximum density 131 

otherwise allowed by the applicable zoning district, up to the maximum density 132 

allowed by the applicable FLU category.  For example, if 12 points are earned for 133 

development with a 10 dwelling units per acre (du/acre) zoning district limit, the 134 

bonus density is 0.004 x 12 x 10 du/acre or 0.48 additional dwelling units per acre.  135 

Density bonus points are earned through one or more of the following options: 136 

(1) Environmentally sensitive lands.  Donation of environmentally sensitive lands 137 

to a public agency approved by the county, or dedication of a conservation 138 

easement in perpetuity which encompasses environmentally sensitive lands, 139 

earns two points per acre donated or reserved. 140 

(2) Public access to waters, beaches, and shores.  Donation of land to a public 141 

agency approved by the county, or dedication and maintenance of a minimum 142 

15-foot wide public access easement, for the provision of public access to public 143 

waterways, beaches, or shores earns four points per accessway.  144 

(3) Water conservation. Appropriate use of low water demand plants and native 145 

vegetation in all landscaped areas earns two points per site or one point per acre 146 

of qualifying land. The use of drip irrigation or other low water use methods of 147 

landscape irrigation earns one point per site, and the use of treated wastewater 148 

or "grey" water for irrigation earns one point per site or one point per acre 149 

irrigated. 150 

(4) Affordable housing. In a development that includes at least 30 dwelling units, 151 

10 percent of the units assured by the approved plan to be affordable housing for 152 

low to moderate income families earns three points, and 20 percent assured 153 

affordable earns six points. If the development contains 50 or more dwelling units 154 

and 20 percent qualify as affordable for low to moderate income, the applicant 155 

may directly obtain a 5 percent increase in density. No more than 20 percent of 156 

the units in a conventional housing development shall be credited for affordable 157 

housing bonus points. 158 

(5) Redevelopment or adaptive reuse. Existing non-residential structures 159 

proposed for reuse as residential earn one point per five dwelling units. For 160 

rehabilitation of existing multi-family residential structures and participation in 161 

state or federal weatherization programs, one point is earned per five dwelling 162 

units. These bonuses only apply to structures for which no notices of violation of 163 

building or life safety codes have been issued, or where all deficiencies identified 164 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 5 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

in an initial notice have been corrected within the time specified in the notice and 165 

no subsequent violation notices issued.  166 

(6) Provision of sidewalks and bikeways.  The provision of sidewalks or the 167 

provision of bicycle paths or lane markings in developments where such facilities 168 

are not otherwise required earns three points.  If the facilities connect to an 169 

existing commercial, office, service, or public recreation area within one-half mile 170 

of the development, four points are earned. 171 

(7) Protection of historic resources.  Donation of land to a public agency 172 

approved by the county for the purpose of preservation of sites or artifacts with 173 

known archaeological or historic value, or the dedication of a conservation 174 

easement in perpetuity for the preservation of such sites or artifacts, earns two 175 

points per acre or site donated.  176 

(8) Provision of underground utilities.  The provision of underground utilities 177 

earns one point for every four dwelling units served.  178 

(9) Clustering outside prime farmland.  Subdivision of parcels containing prime 179 

farmland which plats lots entirely outside of that farmland and designates such 180 

lands for agricultural or open space use earns three points per acre of prime 181 

farmland set aside. 182 

(10) Clustering outside wetlands.  Subdivision of parcels containing jurisdictional 183 

wetlands which plats lots entirely outside of the wetlands and designates such 184 

lands for conservation or open space uses earns three points per acre of 185 

wetlands set aside. 186 

(11) Tree preservation in subdivisions.  In subdivisions where at least 75 percent of 187 

the protected trees within the required yards and any common open space are 188 

preserved, one bonus point is earned for each 10 lots with protected trees on 189 

them. 190 

(12) Retention ponds as amenities.  Wet retention ponds for subdivision stormwater 191 

management which also provide true scenic amenities to the subdivision earn 192 

one point for each four subdivision lots. 193 

Sec. 3-1.7 Clustering dwelling units.   194 

(a) Purpose.  Where the presence of wetlands, floodways, and other protected 195 

resources reduces the developable area of a parcel and effectively limits 196 

development of the available number of dwellings units within the parcel, site and 197 

building requirements of the applicable zoning district may be modified as prescribed 198 

in this section through the applicable site plan or subdivision review process to 199 

facilitate the clustering of additional units within the reduced area. 200 

(b) Eligible areas.  The provisions of this section apply to all areas of the county except 201 

the Perdido Key and Pensacola Beach zoning districts, Airfield Influence Planning 202 

Districts (AIPDs) as defined in Article 4 of Chapter 4, and any other area specifically 203 

excluded by the LDC.  Additionally, the adopted provisions of the Escambia County 204 

Mid-West Optional Sector Plan prevail for any development subject to that plan.   205 

(c) Eligible development.  The provisions of this section apply to any dwelling units, 206 

attached or detached, within any proposed predominantly residential development 207 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 6 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

allowed by the applicable zoning and on contiguous lands under unified control as 208 

these terms are defined in Chapter 6. 209 

(d) Eligible resources.  The provisions of this section apply to protected resources 210 

within eligible areas and development.  Except as may be authorized through the 211 

PUD process prescribed in Chapter 2, modifications to facilitate clustering require 212 

that the contiguous total area of one or more of the following resources comprises 213 

no less than 25 10 percent of the gross development parcel area and complies with 214 

the other conditions applicable to that resource: 215 

(1) Environmentally sensitive lands.  For lands containing wetlands or the habitat 216 

of threatened or endangered species as defined for the natural resources 217 

regulations in Chapter 4, the platting of lots and all other development must be 218 

largely entirely upland of the wetlands and outside of the habitat.  No less than 219 

90 percent of theAdditionally, the entire resource area must remain undisturbed 220 

and preserved as more particularly prescribed in the environmental provisions of 221 

the DSM. 222 

(2) Floodways.  For lands containing a floodway as defined for the floodplain 223 

management regulations in Chapter 4, the platting of lots and all other 224 

development must be entirely outside of the floodway. 225 

(3) Prime farmland.  For lands containing prime farmland as defined in Chapter 6, 226 

the platting of lots and all other development must be entirely outside of the 227 

prime farmland.  Additionally, any subdivision shall designate the resource area 228 

on the plat for agricultural or undeveloped open space use. 229 

(4) Historical resources.  For lands containing historical or archeological resources 230 

as defined for those resource regulations in Chapter 4, the platting of lots and all 231 

other development must be entirely outside of those resource areas.  232 

Additionally, the sites and artifacts of those resources shall be protected by the 233 

dedication of a perpetual conservation easement for their preservation, or by the 234 

donation of land to a public agency approved by the county for the preservation 235 

of resources with known historical or archaeological value. 236 

(5) Open space.  Open space permanently preserved by a perpetual conservation 237 

easement that may allow passive recreation use by tenants of the development.  238 

(e) Eligible modifications.  The provisions of this section apply to modifications of 239 

specific site and building requirements of the applicable zoning district.  The 240 

maximum number of dwelling units available within a development remains the 241 

product of the gross development parcel area and the maximum density of the 242 

district, but the following requirements may be modified within the stated limits:   243 

(1) Lot width.  Except within the LDR zoning district, the minimum lot width may be 244 

reduced by up to 10 percent, but to no less than 20 feet for cul-de-sac lots and 245 

40 feet for all other lots. 246 

(2) Front and rear setbacks.  The minimum front setback may be reduced to 20 247 

feet and the minimum rear setback may be reduced to 15 feet. 248 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 7 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

(23) Side setbacks.  The minimum side structure setbacks may be reduced by up to 249 

10 percent, but to no less than five feet. 250 

(34) Distance between buildings.  The minimum distance between dwellings on 251 

the same parcel, prescribed in this article as twice the minimum side structure 252 

setback, may be reduced by up to 10 percent based on the unmodified side 253 

setback of the zoning district and subject to any prevailing structure separation 254 

requirements of the Florida Building Code. 255 

 256 

Section 2.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 257 

Code of Escambia County, Chapter 4, Location and Use Regulations, Article 5, Natural 258 

Resources, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 259 

stricken are deletions): 260 

Sec. 4-5.2 General provisions. 261 

(a) Approval required.  All land uses and development activities which impact 262 

environmentally sensitive lands require prior county review and approval for 263 

compliance with the regulations of this article unless the use or activity is specifically 264 

identified in the Land Development Code (LDC) as exempt from these regulations.  265 

The Board of County Commissioners (BCC) has determined the following land and 266 

water resources to be environmentally sensitive lands:  267 

(1) Wetlands as defined by the State of Florida.  268 

(2) Shoreline protection zones as defined in this article. 269 

(3) Aquatic preserves and the Escambia River Wildlife Management Area as defined 270 

or authorized by Florida Statutes. 271 

(4) Outstanding Florida Waters as listed in the rules of Florida Administrative Code 272 

(Ch. 62-302.700). 273 

(5) Habitats of threatened and endangered species as defined by the U.S. Fish and 274 

Wildlife Service (FWS), the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 275 

(FWC), or other state or federal agencies. 276 

(6) Essential fish habitat, including seagrasses, defined as those waters and 277 

substrate necessary for fish to spawn, breed, feed, or grow to maturity.  (See 278 

Magnuson-Stevens Act, 16 U.S.C. 1802 (101)).   279 

(7) Floodplain areas identified on the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s 280 

Flood Insurance Rate Map as areas of special flood hazard subject to a one 281 

percent or greater annual chance of flooding. 282 

(8) Wellhead protection areas as defined in this article, including potable water wells, 283 

cones of influence, and potable water well fields. 284 

(9) Surface waters identified as impaired under Section 303(d) of the Clean Water 285 

Act 286 

(b) Modification of regulations.  Variances to the strict application of the regulations of 287 

this article may only be granted according to the compliance review processes of 288 

Chapter 2, and only if such modifications maintain the stated purposes of this article, 289 

are specifically allowed by its provisions, and comply with all stated conditions. 290 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 8 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

(c) Environmental trust fund.  The Escambia County Environmental Lands Trust Fund 291 

(ECELTF) is established for use in managing wetlands and other environmentally 292 

sensitive lands in the county.  The county is authorized and directed here to 293 

establish the fund and to receive and disburse all monies according to the following 294 

provisions: 295 

(1) Fund sources.  The ECELTF shall receive monies from the following sources: 296 

a. All revenues collected pursuant to mitigation and enforcement of this article. 297 

b. All monies accepted by Escambia County in the form of grants, allocations, 298 

donations, contributions, or appropriations for the acquisition, restoration, 299 

enhancement, management, mapping, and/or monitoring of environmentally 300 

sensitive lands. 301 

c. All interest generated from the deposit or investment of ECELTF monies. 302 

(2) Fund maintenance and disbursements.  The ECELTF shall be maintained in 303 

trust by the county solely for the purposes prescribed here, in a separate and 304 

segregated fund of the county that shall not be commingled with other county 305 

funds until disbursed, and only disbursed for the following purposes: 306 

a. Acquisition (including by eminent domain), restoration, enhancement, 307 

management, mapping, and/or monitoring of environmentally sensitive lands 308 

and conservation easements within Escambia County.   309 

b. All costs associated with acquisitions, including appraisals, surveys, title 310 

search work, real property taxes, documentary stamps, surtax fees, and other 311 

transaction costs. 312 

c. Costs of administering the activities enumerated in this section. 313 

(d) Resource identification.  Where the potential for on-site wetlands or the habitat of 314 

threatened or endangered species is indicated, a site-specific survey shall be 315 

conducted and shall include the delineation of all such lands on the subject parcel.  316 

The survey shall be evaluated for the protection of significant resources prior to 317 

clearing, grading or other alterations, and the delineations shall be used in the 318 

determination of buildable area on the lot or parcel.  319 

(e) Avoidance, minimization, and mitigation.  If a proposed land use or development 320 

activity includes impacts to protected natural resources, the application for county 321 

compliance review and approval shall include written documentation that adverse 322 

impacts to those resources have been avoided to the maximum extent practicable.  323 

For unavoidable adverse impacts, the application shall demonstrate that the impacts 324 

have been minimized to the greatest extent practicable.  Only with such 325 

demonstration will the county review and consider a mitigation plan for those 326 

impacts.   327 

(1) Clustering.  Where lands proposed for predominantly residential development 328 

contain wetlands or the habitat of threatened or endangered species, 329 

development dwelling units may be clustered within non-environmentally 330 

sensitive areas as prescribed in Article 1 of Chapter 3 to more fully develop 331 

available density on the remainder of the parcel and avoid adverse impacts on 332 

the resources. to avoid adverse impacts and promote full utilization of property 333 

rights.  This provision overrides any provision in Chapter 3- zoning regulations - 334 

that would otherwise prohibit clustering, with the exclusion of any AIPD areas. 335 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 9 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

(2) Mitigation.  A land use or development activity shall not cause a net adverse 336 

impact on resource functions that is not offset by mitigation.  Methods to 337 

compensate for adverse direct or indirect impacts are required when uses or 338 

activities degrade estuaries, wetlands, surface waters, submerged aquatic 339 

vegetation, threatened and endangered species habitat and other protected 340 

natural resources.   341 

(3) Mitigation plans.  A mitigation plan shall be submitted to the County and 342 

include provisions for the replacement of the predominant functional values of 343 

the lost resources, specify the criteria by which success will be measured, and 344 

specify any necessary maintenance entity and its responsibilities.  345 

 346 

Section 3.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 347 

Code of Escambia County, Chapter 4, Location and Use Regulations, Article 6, 348 

Historical and Archaeological Resources, is hereby amended as follows (words 349 

underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions):  350 

Sec. 4-6.2 General provisions.  351 

(a) Identification of resources.  The potential for on-site historical and archeological 352 

sites shall be determined through review of the Florida Master Site File, Florida’s 353 

official inventory of historical and cultural resources maintained by the Florida 354 

Department of State, and probability maps found in the technical manual. 355 

(b) Protection required.  To protect historical and archeological sites, land uses and 356 

development activities require prior county review and approval for compliance with 357 

the regulations of this article unless the use or activity is specifically identified in the 358 

LDC as exempt from these regulations.  Additionally, these regulations apply to any 359 

historical or archeological artifact discovered during any phase of construction until 360 

such time as the artifact has been protected or proven insignificant. 361 

(c) Cessation of activities.  Any time historical or archeological artifacts or resources 362 

are discovered during the process of construction or development activities, such 363 

activities impacting the artifact or resource shall immediately cease until such time 364 

as a determination of significance has been provided.  365 

(1) Partial cessation.  If the location of the artifact or resource is such that the area 366 

can be protected while construction or development activities continue elsewhere 367 

on the site, such protection shall be allowed.  However, if the location or nature of 368 

the artifact or resource is such that any site disturbing activities would impact the 369 

artifact or resource, then activities on the entire site shall cease. 370 

(2) Extension of approval time.  If the cessation of construction or development 371 

activities goes beyond the time limits established by development orders, 372 

building permits or any other county approvals issued according to the provisions 373 

of the LDC, then the time for completion of such activities shall be extended to 374 

allow for the successful completion of the development or construction. 375 

(d) Determination of significance.   376 

(1) Artifacts.  The determination of whether or not an artifact is of significant 377 

importance and afforded protection by federal or state regulation shall be 378 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 10 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

concluded no later than ten business days after discovery and notification to the 379 

county.  380 

(2) State approved.  The determination of the significance of any artifact or 381 

historical or archeological evidence found on any construction site or on any site 382 

listed on the Florida Master Site File shall be made by those persons, firms or 383 

corporations approved to make such determination by the Florida Department of 384 

State, Division of Historical Resources. 385 

(e) Available resources.  The county shall use any available resources of the Florida 386 

Department of State, Division of Historical Resources, in the identification of historic 387 

structures within the county.  The county will utilize guidance, direction and technical 388 

assistance received from the agency to insure protection of identified historic 389 

structures, sites and areas.  Additionally, the county will utilize state assistance 390 

together with the assistance of the University of West Florida and others in 391 

identifying newly discovered historic or archeological resources.  The identification 392 

will include an analysis to determine the significance of the resource.  393 

(f) Clustering.  Where lands proposed for predominantly residential development 394 

contain historical or archeological resources, the dwelling units may be clustered as 395 

prescribed in Article 1 of Chapter 3 to more fully develop available density on the 396 

remainder of the parcel and avoid adverse impacts on the resources.Clustering 397 

provisions found in Article 5 may be utilized for this resource. 398 

 399 

Section 4. Severability. 400 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 401 

unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 402 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 403 

 404 

Section 5. Inclusion in Code.  405 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 406 

Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2016); and that the sections, 407 

subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 408 

and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “chapter,” or such other 409 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 410 

 411 

Section 6. Effective Date.  412 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 413 

 414 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 415 

 416 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 417 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 11 
Re: Dwelling unit clustering 
Draft PB discussion 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 418 

  419 

By: ______________________________ 420 

           D. B. Underhill, Chairman 421 

 422 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             423 

    Clerk of the Circuit Court 424 

 425 

  By: __________________________    426 

          Deputy Clerk  427 

(SEAL) 428 

 429 

ENACTED: 430 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    431 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  432 

 433 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   8. C.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  

Agenda Item:
Spot Zoning/Rezoning Discussion.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance
Clean Ordinance



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 1 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-_______ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 

PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 5 

AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 2, DEVELOPMENT AND 6 

COMPLIANCE REVIEW, ARTICLE 7, LDC AND COMPREHENSIVE 7 

PLAN AMENDMENT, TO MODIFY APPROVAL CONDITIONS FOR 8 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT (REZONING APPLICATION); AMENDING 9 

CHAPTER 6, DEFINITIONS, SECTION “S,” TO DEFINE “SPOT 10 

ZONING”; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 11 

INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 12 

DATE. 13 

  14 

 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida 15 

Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed 16 

to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and   17 

 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners finds that 18 

logical and orderly land development patterns promote the public health, safety, and 19 

general welfare; and 20 

 WHEREAS, the Board has, within the regulations of the Land Development 21 

Code, established zoning districts to implement the general land development patterns 22 

prescribed by the future land use categories of the Comprehensive Plan; and 23 

 WHEREAS, the Board has, within the Land Development Code, established a 24 

rezoning process to amend existing zoning district boundaries where such amendments 25 

demonstrate the rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly 26 

development pattern; and 27 

 WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that within the rezoning process there remains 28 

confusion regarding use of the term “spot zoning” and, if used, whether the term is only 29 

descriptive or is a legal term of art referring to a practice that is invalid; and 30 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that isolated or spot zoning, while requiring greater 31 

justification within the rezoning process, may serve a beneficial purpose and need not 32 

be prohibited; and 33 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that, since the April 16, 2015, adoption of the Land 34 

Development Code, amendments to more effectively evaluate rezoning applications on 35 

the basis of logical and orderly development patterns are beneficial to the public. 36 

  37 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 38 

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 39 

 40 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 2 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 1 

Code of Escambia County, Chapter 2, Development and Compliance Review, Article 7, 2 

LDC and Comprehensive Plan Amendment, is hereby amended as follows (words 3 

underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions): 4 

Sec. 2-7.2 LDC zoning map and text amendments 5 

(a) General. All provisions of the LDC are established, modified, or repealed by 6 

ordinance of the Board of County Commissioners (BCC). Zoning map and text 7 

amendments may be proposed by the county or others according to the ordinance 8 

enactment procedures prescribed by Florida Statutes and the provisions of this 9 

section. Since any LDC amendment is a change to implementing the land use 10 

regulations of the county and can modify the requirements for subsequent 11 

authorizations of land uses and development activities, significant opportunities for 12 

public participation are provided. These map and text amendment processes are 13 

established for the county to authorize appropriate changes to its land development 14 

regulations. 15 

(b) Zoning map amendment (Rrezoning application).  County-initiated 16 

comprehensive changes to the zoning map that set policy require enactment 17 

through the legislative procedures of the BCC.  Small-scaleIn compliance with the 18 

following process, an owner-initiated zoning map amendment (rezoning) that affects 19 

a limited number of identifiable parties and interests is evaluated first through quasi-20 

judicial public hearings by the Planning Board, or the Santa Rosa Island Authority 21 

(SRIA) for property on Pensacola Beach, and then by the BCC:.  Large-scale 22 

comprehensive changes to the zoning map set policy and require enactment 23 

through the legislative procedures of the BCC. 24 

(1) Application.  An application for a rezoning through the quasi-judicial process 25 

shall be submitted to the clerk of the reviewing board within the time required by 26 

the adopted rezoning procedures of the board Planning Board prior to the 27 

scheduled board meeting at which the applicant requests to be heard. If the 28 

application concerns property under the jurisdiction of the Santa Rosa Island 29 

Authority (SRIA), the application shall be submitted to the clerk of the SRIA at 30 

least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting.  The application 31 

shall provide the information required by the rezoning procedures of the 32 

reviewing board.  A pre-application meeting of the applicant with the staff for the 33 

reviewing board is recommended to discuss the process and to review county, 34 

board, and applicant responsibilities. 35 
(2) Public participation.  Hearings to consider a rezoning application shall be open 36 

to the public.  Prior to any such hearing, the clerk of the reviewing board shall 37 

provide reasonable notice to the public as required by Florida Statutes and the 38 

Comprehensive Plan.  Public notification is required as further outlined in this 39 

Article. The cost of the notification is to be borne by the applicant requesting 40 

review.  Public notification shall include the following, each identifying the 41 

purpose, subject, reviewing authorities, case number, dates, times and locations 42 

of the hearings; the current and proposed zoning; and county contacts for 43 

additional information: 44 

Formatted: Font: Bold, Strikethrough



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 3 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be published 1 

in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 2 
b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 24 3 

inches by 48 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as practicable 4 

to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from the nearest public 5 

right-of-way.  6 
c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be sent 7 

via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser for each 8 

owner of real property with any portion of the property located south of Nine 9 

Mile Rd within 500’ of the subject property.  For property located north of Nine 10 

Mile Rd, notification will be sent to properties within 2500’ of the subject 11 

property.  The cost of the mailing is to be borne by the applicant. 12 

(3) Compliance review.  A quasi-judicial public hearing shall be conducted by the 13 

appropriate reviewing board to consider a requested rezoning according to the 14 

provisions of this article. At the conclusion of the hearing, based on the record 15 

evidence, the reviewing board shall submit a recommendation to the BCC for 16 

rezoning approval, denial, or if appropriate and acceptable to the applicant, 17 

approval of a district with less intensive uses than the requested zoning. 18 

(4) Approval conditions.  The applicant has the burden of presenting competent 19 

substantial evidence to the reviewing board that establishes each establishing 20 

that the requested zoning district would contribute to or result in a logical and 21 

orderly development pattern as demonstrated by all of the following conditions:  22 

a. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed zoning is 23 

consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed in LDC 24 

Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of 25 

the Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a 26 

proposed FLU map amendment transmitted for state agency review, the 27 

proposed zoning is consistent consistency is with the proposed FLU and 28 

conditional to its adoption. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the 29 

goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and not in 30 

conflict with any of its provisions. 31 

b. Consistent with LDC zoning district provisions.  The proposed zoning is 32 

consistent with the purpose and intent, location criteria, and with any other 33 

zoning establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in 34 

Chapter 3. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the stated purposes 35 

and intent of the LDC and not in conflict with any of its provisions.  36 

c. Compatibility Compatible with surroundings.  All of the permitted uses 37 

of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning applicant, 38 

are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The 39 

uses of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered as the 40 

permitted uses of the applicable district. Compatibility is not considered 41 

with potential conditional uses or with any nonconforming or unapproved 42 

uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a residential use, there is no 43 

additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific residents or 44 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 4 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

activities protected by county, state, or federal fair housing law (e.g., 1 

affordable housing). All land uses, development activities, and conditions 2 

allowed by the proposed zoning are compatible with the surrounding 3 

conforming uses, activities and conditions and are able to coexist in 4 

relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such that no use, 5 

activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of 6 

the rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is 7 

evident for all permitted uses of the requested zoning. This condition shall 8 

not apply to any conditional uses of the proposed district or compatibility 9 

with nonconforming or unapproved uses, activities, or conditions.  10 

d. Appropriate as spot zoning.  Where the proposed zoning would establish 11 

or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as defined in Chapter 6, the isolated 12 

district would nevertheless be transitional in character between the 13 

adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or 14 

sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or 15 

conditions demonstrates an appropriate site-specific balancing of interests 16 

between the isolated district and adjoining lands. 17 

de. Appropriate with Changed changing conditions.  The area surrounding 18 

the property of to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, 19 

or is changing, to such a degree that the permitted uses of the proposed 20 

district are not premature for the area and not likely to create or contribute 21 

to sprawl it is in the public interest to encourage new uses, density, or 22 

intensity in the area through rezoning. 23 
e. Development patterns. The proposed rezoning would contribute to or 24 

result in a logical and orderly development pattern. 25 

f. Effect on natural environment. The proposed rezoning would not increase 26 

the probability of any significant adverse impacts on the natural 27 

environment. 28 

(5) Board Action. WhenIf the reviewing board finds from the record of the hearing 29 

that the applicant has presented competent substantial evidence establishing 30 

the required conditions, the board shall then consider whether maintaining the 31 

current zoning will serve a greater public interest.  The board shall recommend 32 

approval of the rezoning request to the BCC Iif both of the following conditions 33 

are confirmed and no greater public interest is otherwise found in maintaining 34 

the current zoning, the board shall recommend approval of the rezoning request 35 

to the BCC recommend approval of the rezoning request to the BCC, unless 36 

the board determines that maintaining the current zoning will prevent the 37 

following: 38 

a. No new uses, density, or intensity of use will likely diminish quality of life, 39 

reduce property values, confer a special benefit on the subject property to 40 

the detriment of the community as a whole, or create other adverse impacts 41 

upon surrounding properties more than the uses, density, or intensity of the 42 

current zoning. 43 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 5 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

b. Greater consideration has been given to the protection of established 1 

conforming investments than to projected investments, and future beneficial 2 

use is encouraged rather than the sale of land for mere speculation. 3 

a. Premature development or sprawl.  The land uses and development 4 

activities allowed by the proposed rezoning are premature, or the rezoning 5 

would likely create or contribute to an urban sprawl pattern of 6 

development more than the current zoning. 7 
b. Isolated districts. The proposed rezoning would create or contribute to 8 

an isolated zoning district that is neither related to the adjacent and 9 

nearby zoning districts nor an appropriate transition between them. 10 

c. Intrusion of non-residential uses. The proposed rezoning would allow an 11 

intrusion of commercial or industrial uses into a platted residential 12 

subdivision or other established residential area more than the current 13 

zoning. 14 

d. Property value impacts.  The land uses, development activities and 15 

conditions allowed by the proposed rezoning would likely result in 16 

significant adverse impacts upon the property values of adjacent properties 17 

or those in the immediate area more than the types of use, activities, and 18 

conditions permitted by the current zoning. 19 

e. Nuisance-based impacts.  The land uses, development activities and 20 

conditions allowed by the proposed rezoning would likely adversely impact 21 

the character of existing development or quality of life in the general area or 22 

neighborhood by creating excessive traffic, noise, lights, vibration, fumes, 23 

odors, dust, physical activities, or other detrimental effects or nuisances 24 

more than the types of uses, activities and conditions permitted by the 25 

current zoning. 26 

(6) Final determination. The BCC at its scheduled hearing shall adopt, modify, or 27 

reject the recommendation of the Planning Board or SRIA or return the rezoning 28 

case to the board with instructions for additional facts or clarification. The staff 29 

of the recommending board shall inform the board of all formal actions taken by 30 

the BCC on the rezoning request. 31 

(7) Appeals. Actions by the BCC adopting, rejecting, or modifying the 32 

recommended rezoning of the reviewing board are final. Any party seeking 33 

judicial review of the final determination shall do so according to the general 34 

provisions of Article 1. Additionally, written notice of the filing of any such 35 

petition for judicial review shall be promptly provided by the petitioner through 36 

the county to each owner of real property with any portion within a 500-foot 37 

radius of the rezoning subject property. 38 

 39 

Section 2.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land 40 

Development Code of Escambia County, Chapter 6, Definitions, Section “S,” is hereby 41 

amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are 42 

deletions): 43 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 6 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

Sec. 6.0-3 Terms defined. 1 

-S- 2 

Salvage yard. An industrial facility or area for the collection, storage, sale or 3 

exchange, disassembly, shredding, compaction, bailing, or other handling of scrap or 4 

discarded material or equipment for salvage, including metals, paper, rags, tires, 5 

bottles and cans, motor vehicles, machinery, appliances, and structural steel.  6 

Sand dune. Naturally occurring accumulations of sand in ridges or mounds landward 7 

of the beach. 8 

Screened or screening. A method of visually shielding or obscuring a structure or use 9 

from view by fencing, walls, berms, or vegetation. 10 

Seawall. A wall or an embankment designed to halt the encroachment of a waterbody.  11 

Sediment. Mineral or organic particulates that have been transported from their origin 12 

by wind or water and deposited at another location. 13 

Sedimentation. The deposition of sediment. 14 

Self-storage facility. A building or group of buildings containing separate individual 15 

storage units available for lease or rent for varying periods of time for the self-service 16 

storage of goods. Self-service storage facilities may also be known as mini-17 

warehouses. 18 

Semi-impervious surface. Any surface that is more resistant to the infiltration of water 19 

than a pervious surface, but more easily allows infiltration than an impervious surface. 20 

Such moderately impermeable surfaces include compacted stone, gravel, recycled 21 

asphalt, shell, or clay serving vehicular traffic; paver stones and "pervious" concrete; 22 

and other surfaces for which runoff coefficients no less than 0.60 are typically used for 23 

stormwater management calculations. 24 

Setback. The required minimum distance from a property line or other boundary line 25 

that establishes the area within which a structure is allowed to be erected or placed. 26 

Shooting range. An indoor or outdoor facility designed for archery, paintball, or the 27 

discharge of firearms, including rifles, shotguns, pistols, muzzle loading and black 28 

powder guns. The term "shooting range" includes facilities for the purpose of sport 29 

shooting or for military or law enforcement training, including mock hazard response, 30 

target practice, skeet and trap. 31 

Shopping center. An integrated group of retail sales and service establishments that is 32 

planned, constructed, and managed to function as a unit, with customer and employee 33 

parking provided on site and the delivery of goods separated from customer access.  34 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 7 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

Sign. Any object, device, display, or structure, or part thereof, which is positioned and 1 

used to advertise, identify, announce, direct or attract attention, or otherwise visually 2 

communicate a message outdoors using words, letters, numerals, emblems, figures, 3 

symbols, pictures, or other images. Signs are more specifically defined by form and 4 

use in the signage standards of chapter 5. 5 

Sign area. The surface area of a sign shall be computed as including the entire area 6 

within the smallest rectangle, triangle, circle or other regular geometric form, or 7 

aggregates thereof, encompassing all of the display area of the sign and including all 8 

of the elements of the matter displayed. Base, apron, supports and other structural 9 

members not bearing advertising matter shall not be included in computation of 10 

surface area. Border or trim shall be included in computation of surface area. One side 11 

only of a double-sided sign shall be used in computing sign area where they are 12 

placed back to back on a single sign structure and are at no point more than three feet 13 

apart. 14 

Sign face. The area or display surface used for the message. 15 

Sign triangle. See visual clearance section of landscaping provisions. 16 

Silviculture. The management of forest establishment, growth, composition, health, 17 

and quality to produce lumber, pulp wood, or other forest products on a sustainable 18 

basis. The term "silviculture" includes site preparation, planting, prescribed burning, 19 

harvesting, and replanting activities. 20 

Site plan. A scaled plan depicting proposed site development or redevelopment within 21 

a parcel as required by the LDC for compliance review and approval.  22 

Solid waste. Materials regulated by the state as solid waste, including sludge from a 23 

waste treatment works, water supply treatment plant, or air pollution control facility; or 24 

garbage, rubbish, refuse, special waste, or other discarded material, including solid, 25 

liquid, semisolid or contained gaseous material resulting from domestic, industrial, 26 

commercial, mining, agricultural, or governmental operations.  27 

Solid waste collection point. A site for the collection of non-hazardous solid waste from 28 

individual generators and transport to waste transfer, material recovery, waste 29 

disposal or other solid waste management facilities. 30 

Solid waste disposal facility. See "Landfill." 31 

Solid waste transfer facility. An industrial facility where non-hazardous solid waste 32 

from collection vehicles is consolidated, temporarily stored, and may be sorted, for 33 

subsequent transport to other facilities for processing or final disposal.  34 

Sprawl or urban sprawl. A haphazard development pattern of dispersed and strip 35 

growth in suburbs and rural areas and along highways that is characterized by low 36 

density, automobile-dependent development with either a single use or multiple uses 37 

https://www.municode.com/library/fl/escambia_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIIILADECO_CH5GEDEST


 

PB 08-01-17 Page 8 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

that are not functionally related, requiring the extension of public facilities and services 1 

in an inefficient manner, and failing to provide a clear separation between urban and 2 

rural uses. 3 

Spot zoning.  Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its size, that is different 4 

from the zoning of any directly adjoiningall contiguous land.  Such isolated or “spot” 5 

zoning is usually higher in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and 6 

may, therefore, extend privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in 7 

the area.  Spot zoning is not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse 8 

impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a higher burden of demonstration that, if 9 

authorized, it will contribute to or result in the logical and orderly development required 10 

of all zoning. 11 

Stable, public. A structure where horses, ponies or other domesticated equines are 12 

kept for sale or hire, including their boarding, training, breeding, and riding.  13 

Stable, private. An accessory structure where horses, ponies or other domesticated 14 

equines are kept for the private use of the occupants of the premises and their guests, 15 

and not kept for hire. 16 

Stadium or arena. A structure with tiers of spectator seats rising around all or part of 17 

an open or enclosed field or place used for athletic, entertainment, or other major 18 

events. Stadiums may include food service, retail stores, meeting rooms and other 19 

incidental uses customarily accessory to the principal use.  20 

Start of construction. The date the building permit was issued, provided the actual 21 

start of construction, repair, reconstruction, or improvement was within 180 days of the 22 

permit date. The actual start means the first placement of permanent construction of a 23 

structure (including a manufactured home) on a site, such as the pouring of slabs or 24 

footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of 25 

excavation or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent 26 

construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; 27 

nor does it include the installation of streets or walkways; nor does it include 28 

excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary 29 

forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such 30 

as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. 31 

This definition does not apply to new construction or substantial improvements under 32 

the Coastal Barrier Resources Act (P.L. 97-348). 33 

Storage. The placement, accumulation, or keeping of things, or the condition of things 34 

placed, accumulated, or kept, in a specific location for preservation, future use, or 35 

disposal. 36 

Storage, outdoor or outside. The storage of any equipment, goods, junk, material, 37 

merchandise, or vehicles outside of an enclosed building in the same area on a site 38 

for more than 72 hours. 39 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 9 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

Stormwater. The flow of water which results from, and which occurs immediately 1 

following, a rainfall event. 2 

Stormwater management. Any technique, apparatus, or facility that controls or 3 

manages the path, storage, quality, or rate of release of stormwater runoff, including 4 

storm sewers, retention and detention ponds, drainage channels and swales, and inlet 5 

and outlet structures. 6 

Stormwater management plan. A professionally certified plan to manage stormwater 7 

runoff from development by providing concurrent control of erosion, water quality, 8 

sedimentation, and flooding in compliance with all applicable regulatory authorities.  9 

Stormwater management system. The designed features of the property which collect, 10 

convey, channel, hold, inhibit, or divert the movement of stormwater.  11 

Stormwater pond. A stormwater storage facility that may be further characterized as:  12 

Detention pond. A facility for the collection and temporary storage of stormwater 13 

runoff for treatment through physical, chemical, or biological processes and for 14 

attenuating discharge with subsequent gradual controlled discharge.  15 

Retention pond. A facility for the collection and prevention of discharge of 16 

stormwater runoff surface waters by complete on-site storage where the capacity 17 

to store the given volume must be provided by a decrease of stored water caused 18 

only by percolation through soil, evaporation, or evapotranspiration (loss of water 19 

from soil by both evaporation and transpiration from plants).  20 

Dry pond. A facility designed to collect and store stormwater runoff in a normally 21 

dry basin. 22 

Wet pond. A facility designed to collect and store stormwater runoff in a 23 

permanently wet impoundment with a gently sloping littoral zone shelf designed to 24 

support the growth of rooted aquatic plants. A wet pond provides for treatment 25 

through physical, chemical, and biological processes. 26 

Story. That portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the 27 

surface of the next floor above, or if there is no floor above it, then the space between 28 

such floor and the ceiling next above it. In computing the number of stories in a 29 

building, a basement shall not be considered a story if  more than one-half of its height 30 

is below the mean grade. For areas governed by FDEP or FEMA elevation 31 

requirements, the number of stories in a building shall be counted from the minimum 32 

required elevation established by FDEP or FEMA for the habitable first floor, 33 

whichever is higher. 34 

Street. A public or private right-of-way designed and used primarily for vehicular 35 

transportation, including all of the land lying between the right -of-way lines delineating 36 

the access way, whether improved or unimproved, and typically affording the principal 37 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 10 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

means of access to adjoining land. The term "street" includes the terms "road," 1 

"avenue," "boulevard," "lane," "thoroughfare" and "highway" when used for such 2 

access ways. However, the term does not include alleys, access ways such as 3 

easements and rights-of-way intended solely for limited utility purposes, or access 4 

ways and driveways designed as part of or access to on-site parking. Streets may be 5 

classified as the following: 6 

Arterial street, major. A street providing service that is relatively continuous and of 7 

relatively high traffic volume, long trip length, and high operating speed, including 8 

every United States numbered highway. 9 

Arterial street, minor. A street providing connections between major activity 10 

centers of the county, and which augments the major arterial system for local and 11 

inter-county traffic by feeding traffic from collector and local street systems onto 12 

major arterials. 13 

Collector street. A street providing service that is of relatively moderate traffic 14 

volume, moderate trip length, and moderate operating speed, and which 15 

distributes traffic between local streets or arterial streets.  16 

Local street. A street providing service that is of relatively low traffic volume, short 17 

average trip length, or minimal through traffic movements, and high quantity land 18 

access for abutting property. 19 

Private street. A privately owned and maintained street. 20 

Public street. A street under the jurisdiction of and maintained by a public entity 21 

for public travel. 22 

Structural alteration. Any change in the supporting members of a building, such as 23 

bearing walls, bearing partitions, columns, beams or girders, or any complete 24 

rebuilding of the roof, exterior walls or any other change which results in increased or 25 

decreased height of a structure. 26 

Structure. Anything constructed, assembled or erected, the use of which requires 27 

location on or in the ground, or attachment to something having location on or in the 28 

ground. The term "structure" does not include unroofed paved surfaces, such as 29 

sidewalks, driveways, parking lots, or paved areas used for sports activities. For the 30 

purposes of floodplain management, "structure" means a walled and roofed building, 31 

including a gas or liquid storage tank, which is principally above ground, as we ll as a 32 

manufactured home. 33 

Subdivision. The division of a parcel of land, whether improved or unimproved, into 34 

three or more contiguous lots or parcels of land or, if the establishment of a new street 35 

is involved, any division of the parcel. When appropriate to the context, the term 36 

"subdivision" refers to the process of subdividing or to the land subdivided.  37 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 11 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

Subdivision, recorded. The plat of an approved subdivision as recorded in the office of 1 

the Clerk of the Court, Escambia County, according to Florida Statutes. 2 

Substance abuse treatment facility. A state licensed residential or inpatient facility 3 

which provides professionally planned and directed clinical treatment in a structured 4 

live-in environment within a nonhospital setting on a 24-hours-per-day, seven-days-5 

per-week basis, designed to reduce or eliminate the misuse of drugs and alcohol and 6 

promote a healthy, drug-free lifestyle. 7 

Substantial construction. All required permits necessary to continue the development 8 

have been obtained; permitted clearing and grading has been completed on a 9 

significant portion of the development subject to a single final development order; and 10 

the actual construction of buildings or water and sewer lines, streets, or the 11 

stormwater management system has been completed on a significant portion of the 12 

development or is progressing in a manner that significantly moves the entire 13 

development toward completion of construction. 14 

Substantial damage. Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost 15 

of restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 16 

percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred. The "cost" of 17 

the restoration is the fair market value of the material and services necessary to 18 

accomplish the entire restoration and is unaffected by incremental restoration work.  19 

Substantial improvement. Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other 20 

improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the 21 

market value of the structure before the improvement or repair is started. If the 22 

structure has incurred "substantial damage," any repairs are considered substantial 23 

improvement regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, 24 

however, include either of the following: 25 

1. Any project for improvement of a building required to correct existing health, 26 

sanitary, or safety code violations identified by the building official and that are the 27 

minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions. 28 

2. Any alteration of an historic structure provided the alteration will not preclude the 29 

structure's continued designation as a historic structure and the alteration is 30 

approved by variance issued according to the provisions of the LDC.  31 

Suitability. The degree to which the existing characteristics and limitations of land and 32 

water are compatible with a proposed use or development.  33 

Surface water. Water upon the surface of the earth, whether contained in bounds 34 

created naturally or artificially or diffused. Water from natural springs is classified as 35 

surface water when it exits from the spring onto the earth's surface.  36 

 37 

  38 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 12 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

Section 4. Severability. 1 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 2 

unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 3 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 4 

 5 

Section 5. Inclusion in Code.  6 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 7 

Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2016); and that the sections, 8 

subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 9 

and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “chapter,” or such other 10 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 11 

 12 

Section 6. Effective Date.  13 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 14 

 15 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 16 

 17 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 18 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 19 

  20 

By: ______________________________ 21 

           D. B. Underhill, Chairman 22 

 23 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             24 

    Clerk of the Circuit Court 25 

 26 

  By: __________________________    27 

          Deputy Clerk  28 

(SEAL) 29 

 30 

ENACTED: 31 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    32 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  33 

 34 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 1 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

Clean Copy of Proposed Changes to Rezoning 1 

Sec. 2-7.2 LDC zoning map and text amendments 2 

(a) General. All provisions of the LDC are established, modified, or repealed by 3 

ordinance of the Board of County Commissioners (BCC). Zoning map and text 4 

amendments may be proposed by the county or others according to the ordinance 5 

enactment procedures prescribed by Florida Statutes and the provisions of this 6 

section. Since any LDC amendment is a change to implementing the land use 7 

regulations of the county and can modify the requirements for subsequent 8 

authorizations of land uses and development activities, significant opportunities for 9 

public participation are provided. These map and text amendment processes are 10 

established for the county to authorize appropriate changes to its land development 11 

regulations. 12 

(b) Zoning map amendment (rezoning).  County-initiated comprehensive changes to 13 

the zoning map that set policy require enactment through the legislative procedures 14 

of the BCC.  In compliance with the following process, an owner-initiated zoning 15 

map amendment (rezoning) that affects a limited number of identifiable parties and 16 

interests is evaluated first through quasi-judicial public hearings by the Planning 17 

Board, or the Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA) for property on Pensacola Beach, 18 

and then by the BCC: 19 

(1) Application.  Application for rezoning through the quasi-judicial process shall 20 

be submitted to the clerk of the reviewing board within the time required by the 21 

adopted rezoning procedures of the board prior to the scheduled board meeting 22 

at which the applicant requests to be heard.  The application shall provide the 23 

information required by the rezoning procedures of the board.  A pre-application 24 

meeting of the applicant with the staff for the reviewing board is recommended 25 

to discuss the process and to review county, board, and applicant 26 

responsibilities. 27 

(2) Public participation.  Hearings to consider a rezoning application shall be open 28 

to the public.  Prior to any such hearing, the clerk of the reviewing board shall 29 

provide reasonable notice to the public as required by Florida Statutes and the 30 

Comprehensive Plan.  Public notification shall include the following, each 31 

identifying the purpose, subject, reviewing authorities, case number, dates, times 32 

and locations of the hearings; the current and proposed zoning; and county 33 

contacts for additional information: 34 

a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be published 35 

in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 36 

b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 24 37 

inches by 48 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as practicable 38 

to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from the nearest public 39 

right-of-way.  40 

c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be sent 41 

via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser for each 42 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 2 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

owner of real property with any portion of the property located south of Nine 1 

Mile Rd within 500’ of the subject property.  For property located north of Nine 2 

Mile Rd, notification will be sent to properties within 2500’ of the subject 3 

property.  The cost of the mailing is to be borne by the applicant. 4 

(3) Compliance review.  A quasi-judicial public hearing shall be conducted by the 5 

appropriate reviewing board to consider a requested rezoning according to the 6 

provisions of this article. At the conclusion of the hearing, based on the record 7 

evidence, the reviewing board shall submit a recommendation to the BCC for 8 

rezoning approval, denial, or if appropriate and acceptable to the applicant, 9 

approval of a district with less intensive uses than the requested zoning. 10 

(4) Approval conditions.  The applicant has the burden of presenting competent 11 

substantial evidence to the reviewing board establishing that the requested 12 

zoning district would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly development 13 

pattern as demonstrated by all of the following conditions:  14 

a. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed zoning is 15 

consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed in LDC 16 

Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of 17 

the Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a 18 

proposed FLU map amendment transmitted for state agency review, the 19 

proposed zoning is consistent with the proposed FLU and conditional to its 20 

adoption. 21 

b. Consistent with zoning district provisions.  The proposed zoning is 22 

consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning 23 

establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.  24 

c. Compatible with surroundings.  All of the permitted uses of the proposed 25 

zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning applicant, are compatible, 26 

as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The uses of any 27 

surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of 28 

the applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential 29 

conditional uses or with any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in 30 

establishing the compatibility of a residential use, there is no additional 31 

burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific residents or activities 32 

protected by county, state, or federal fair housing law (e.g., affordable 33 

housing). 34 

d. Appropriate as spot zoning.  Where the proposed zoning would establish 35 

or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as defined in Chapter 6, the isolated 36 

district would nevertheless be transitional in character between the 37 

adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or 38 

sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or 39 

conditions demonstrates an appropriate site-specific balancing of interests 40 

between the isolated district and adjoining lands. 41 

e. Appropriate with changing conditions.  The area surrounding the 42 

property of the proposed rezoning has changed, or is changing, to such a 43 



 

PB 08-01-17 Page 3 
Re: spot zoning and rezoning 
Draft PB discussion 

degree that the permitted uses of the proposed district are not premature 1 

for the area and not likely to create or contribute to sprawl. 2 

(4) Board Action. If the reviewing board finds from the record of the hearing that 3 

the applicant has presented competent substantial evidence establishing the 4 

required conditions, the board shall then consider whether maintaining the 5 

current zoning will serve a greater public interest.  The board shall recommend 6 

approval of the rezoning request to the BCC if both of the following conditions 7 

are confirmed and no greater public interest is otherwise found in maintaining 8 

the current zoning: 9 

a. No new uses, density, or intensity of use will likely diminish quality of life, 10 

reduce property values, confer a special benefit on the subject property to 11 

the detriment of the community as a whole, or create other adverse impacts 12 

upon surrounding properties more than the uses, density, or intensity of the 13 

current zoning. 14 

b. Greater consideration has been given to the protection of established 15 

conforming investments than to projected investments, and future beneficial 16 

use is encouraged rather than the sale of land for mere speculation. 17 

(6) Final determination. The BCC at its scheduled hearing shall adopt, modify, or 18 

reject the recommendation of the Planning Board or SRIA or return the rezoning 19 

case to the board with instructions for additional facts or clarification. The staff 20 

of the recommending board shall inform the board of all formal actions taken by 21 

the BCC on the rezoning request. 22 

(7) Appeals. Actions by the BCC adopting, rejecting, or modifying the 23 

recommended rezoning of the reviewing board are final. Any party seeking 24 

judicial review of the final determination shall do so according to the general 25 

provisions of Article 1. Additionally, written notice of the filing of any such 26 

petition for judicial review shall be promptly provided by the petitioner through 27 

the county to each owner of real property with any portion within a 500-foot 28 

radius of the rezoning subject property. 29 

 30 

Sec. 6.0-3 Terms defined. 31 

-S- 32 

Spot zoning.  Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its size, that is different 33 

from the zoning of all contiguous land.  Such isolated or “spot” zoning is usually higher 34 

in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore, extend 35 

privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot zoning 36 

is not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning 37 

it carries a higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or 38 

result in logical and orderly development. 39 

 40 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   8. D.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  

Agenda Item:
Subdivision Roads and Site Plans Discussion.

Attachments
Attachment



1

John C. Fisher

From: John C. Fisher
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2017 3:04 PM
To: Horace L Jones; Terry D Williams; Andrew D. Holmer
Cc: Griffin L Vickery
Subject: semi-Cul-de-sacs/knobs/bulges in Subdivisions

David Peaden & Tom Hammond,  

Escambia County Planning & Zoning staff is working on a an ongoing subdivision lot width issue when dealing with 
curves in the road. In Land Development Code (LDC) under the Site and Building Requirements the conflict comes when 
we talk about Cul‐de‐sacs. Staff are reviewing things like, semi‐Cul‐de‐sacs/knobs/bulges in the road, as well as curves in 
the road where the engineer is designing with 20’ lot widths which is a Cul‐de‐sac design. 

Please review below some suggestions and thoughts and reply back. We can schedule a meeting to discuss any options 
as needed. 

 One idea would to do a Lot width Average at the Street ROW for when platting a subdivision. 

 Subdivisions are being submitted with knobs or sharp curves in the road and using the Cul‐de‐sac lot 
width of 20 for a design. 

 Currently under the LDC Site & Building Requirements for example in LDR we have.   
 

Lot width. A minimum lot width of 20 feet at the street right-of-way for cul-de-sac lots and 
60 feet at the street right-of-way for all other lots.  
 

 The issue is Cul-de-sacs and staff removed the Front Building Line Lot width back in 
August of 2016. 
 
In removing the front building line lot width was supposed to make it easier for engineers to 
design because they would only have to adhere to the street right-of-way lot width of 40’, 
50’, 60’ etc verse also the front building line. 
 
 Please see attachments of some examples and read below the Cul-de-sac definition as 
well some alternative language.  
 

 Definition in LDC 
 

Cul-de-sac. A local street with one end open to traffic and the other end terminated by a 
vehicular turnaround. For the purposes of determining required minimum lot width, the term 
“cul-de-sac” refers only to the vehicular turnaround at the closed end of the street.  
 
 

When creating a platted subdivision with curves or knobs/ bulges in the road a 20% 
reduction may be applied to the street right-of-way lot width as long as the front setback 
meets the current default street right-of-way.  
 

Would need to define the street knobs/bulges. 

Thanks 

 



2

John C Fisher 
Senior Planner 
Development Services Department 
3363 West Park Place 
Pensacola, FL 32505 
850‐595‐4651 
  
Florida has a very broad public records law.  Under Florida's law, both the contents of emails and email addresses are 
public records.  If you do not want the content of your email or your email address released in response to a public 
records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. 
 
 
John C Fisher 
Senior Planner 
Development Services Department 
3363 West Park Place 
Pensacola, FL 32505 
850‐595‐4651 
 
Florida has a very broad public records law.  Under Florida's law, both the contents of emails and email addresses are 
public records.  If you do not want the content of your email or your email address released in response to a public 
records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. 
 



astierwalt
Polygon









Rick Harrison

Rick Harrison is president of Rick Harrison Site Design Studio and Neighborhood Innovations LLC. He is the author of the book
Prefurbia and the developer of the Performance Planning System.

As the economy begins a slow recovery and subdivision development work

again gets under way, it makes sense to reassess the approach to the basic

form of land development design. Developers assume that when they hire a

land surveyor to subdivide their land, the surveyor will produce the most

efficient, attractive and marketable layout. So what is the optimum layout?

As the economy begins a slow recovery and subdivision development work again gets under way, it makes

sense to reassess the approach to the basic form of land development design. Land surveyors are a major

source for the design of land developments-in particular, suburbia. Developers assume that when they hire

a land surveyor to subdivide their land, the surveyor will produce the most efficient, attractive and

marketable layout. So what is the optimum layout?

One of the most popular suburban subdivision design elements is the cul-de-sac. Developers and real

estate agents love cul-de-sacs because they are highly desirable and, thus, easy to sell. Cul-de-sac lots have

a huge rear yard (bringing premium prices) because of the extreme pie shape, and the curving streets

guarantee that no traffic will speeding through. The wide angles between the adjacent home sides allow

some useable side yard space as well as added privacy. Quiet, serene and safe-what’s not to love?

The reality is that existing design guidelines for cul-de-sacs create a substantial amount of waste with

relatively little benefit. In the upper Midwest, for example, design guidelines stipulate that a cul-de-sac

must have a 120-foot-diameter right-of-way with a 100-foot to 110-foot circle of asphalt because fire

departments say they need that much room to turn a fire engine around. As a result, a typical cul-de-sac

consumes 8,500 square feet of paved space. Yet, a bit farther south, those dimensions change to a 100-foot-

diameter right-of-way with a 90-foot-diameter circle for a total of just under 6,000 square feet of space.

Opinion: Rethinking Subdivision Design http://www.pobonline.com/blogs/14-point-of-beginning-blog/post/94291...

1 of 4 6/28/17, 4:16 PM



That’s a substantial difference.

There are other problems, too. An 8,500-square-foot volume of cul-de-sac paving for four lots equates to

2,150 square feet per home, which is 40 percent more paving per house than a home along a typical

straight street. This means the home will cost the city 40 percent more for snow removal, resurfacing, etc.,

forever. Additionally, cul-de-sacs have no connectivity or flow of space. And homes that are placed to offer

premium views to their occupants typically form a visual barrier to others of that view.

A collection of new methods called prefurbia (preferred urbia) throws out convention in favor of a more-

efficient design.

A conventional cul-de-sac design.

When planning subdivisions, everyone generally assumes that the minimum dimensions are the most

efficient. However, the minimum dimensions in a cul-de-sac are typically very inefficient.

By making a typical northern cul-de-sac larger-for example, 160 feet in diameter with a one way narrow

lane (18 feet wide) incorporating an organic island (see picture below right)-the pavement area plummets.

Such a design uses 10 percent less paving and has a central “park” that beautifies the landscape and allows

for drainage.

Placing the homes at a deeper setback from the right-of-way (40 or 50 feet or more instead of the typical

25-foot setback) stretches the length of setback line and makes the lots much less pie-shaped. Most

ordinances allow setbacks to be extended without asking for a planned unit development (PUD) permit

because ordinances specify only minimums, and these dimensions are all larger.

Opinion: Rethinking Subdivision Design http://www.pobonline.com/blogs/14-point-of-beginning-blog/post/94291...

2 of 4 6/28/17, 4:16 PM



A prefurbia cul-de-sac design.

The new cul-de-sac should double the number of premium positioned and shaped lots with much less

paving. Instead of being 40 percent less efficient than a rectangular lot on a straight street, the new cul-de-

sac is approximately 20 percent more efficient. First developed as coving (a method of organized

meandering setbacks) this larger cul-de-sac conforms to conventional design, as well-the development

does not have to be “coved.”

What’s more, the larger cul-de-sac requires no more land area (density per unit) than a traditional cul-de-

sac. While a lot in this larger cul-de-sac is less pie shaped, it still has a significantly larger rear yard.

Additionally, the lots overlooking an 8,800 -square-foot park will be of much higher value than those

overlooking the 8,500-square-feet of asphalt in a traditional cul-de-sac design. The park can be used for

gardens and recreation. Another benefit is that draining into the center eliminates curbing on one side,

which makes the subdivision even more efficient and green. Additionally, since the design doubles the

number of premium cul-de-sac lots using less paving and overall land area, fewer cul-de-sacs-and

therefore fewer intersections-are needed, which increases the efficiency of the overall neighborhood.

This design also ushers in a new era of pedestrian connectivity. Instead of a narrow sidewalk on both sides

of the street, this new form of cul-de-sac features a more environmentally friendly, less expensive 6-foot

walkway on one side of the street that extends through and beyond the cul-de-sac and leads to the park

areas in the middle. The interconnecting walks can be made wide enough at certain locations to provide

emergency access that would rival tight grid patterns.

The deeper setbacks produce longer driveways, but new design and construction methods can get the

pavement volume close to that of a standard driveway and heighten curb appeal.

Since all minimums and setbacks extend beyond the minimum required dimension, there should be no

Opinion: Rethinking Subdivision Design http://www.pobonline.com/blogs/14-point-of-beginning-blog/post/94291...

3 of 4 6/28/17, 4:16 PM



Copyright ©2017. All Rights Reserved BNP Media.

Design, CMS, Hosting & Web Development :: ePublishing

arguments from the municipality. In fact, municipal officials are likely to embrace this type of design. Also,

this design allows developers to become inventive. Neighborhoods developed through this design enhance

the sense of space, reduce impervious surface area, create more-affordable homes and lessen the

environmental impact of land development. Even if you do not subscribe to coving, few can argue the

advantages of creating this new form of cul-de-sac. Understanding this advanced method of subdivision

design can help surveyors leverage more business as the economy regains momentum.

What do you think? Does this new form of cul-de-sac design offer new opportunities for surveyors in

land development work? Please share your comments below.

Prefurbia

Rick Harrison Site Design Studio

Performance Planning System

Rick Harrison is president of Rick Harrison Site Design Studio and Neighborhood Innovations LLC. He is the author of the book
Prefurbia and the developer of the Performance Planning System.

Opinion: Rethinking Subdivision Design http://www.pobonline.com/blogs/14-point-of-beginning-blog/post/94291...

4 of 4 6/28/17, 4:16 PM



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   8. E.           
Meeting Date: 08/01/2017  

Agenda Item:
Storage Containers Discussion.

Attachments
Attachment



Thursday, June 29, 2017 

 

Storage Containers 

 

Attendance: Terry, Griff, John 

 

Residential use.   

As Accessory 

 Pods are working as temp. 

 Shipping Containers meet standard LDC Accessory rules. 

 Industrial appearance 

 Limit to 1 or a sqft or my zoning.   

 Limit by lot size. 

 Color create a scheme 

 Rust 

 Roof must be a tilt for runoff,,,,find APA article 

 Define shipping containers 

 CRA 

 NO STACKING 

 10 feet in height, 10 feet in width, and 40 feet in length, 400sqft 

 Must be screen 

 6ft privacy min. 

 

 

 

Creating a SFD. 

 Must meet Building code. Define what is a living facility.   

 Tilt of roof? 

 Do we want to control looks. 

 CRA 

 

 

Commercial use. 



 

County of San Diego, Planning & Development Services 
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR PLACING A SEA 
CARGO CONTAINER ON A PRIVATE LOT 
 

ZONING DIVISION 

 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA  92123 ● (858) 565-5981 ● (888) 267-8770 
 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/pds 

PDS-726   (Rev. 01/12/2017)                    PAGE 1 of 3 

Pursuant to Section 6162 of the Zoning Ordinance, a building permit is required to place 
a Sea Cargo Container on a lot and a demolition permit to remove a Sea Cargo Container 
 
A. Requirements: before placing a Sea Cargo Container on a lot, you must fully 

comply with Section 6162 of the County of San Diego Zoning Ordinance: 
 

1. Property owners claiming to be an agricultural operation must provide substantial evidence of 
use, such as aerial photos of the last 30 years, showing the agricultural operation in 
place, or dated photographs, business tax records, business receipts, customer orders, or 
other significant information related to an active agricultural operation.   

 
The burden of proof of use is the responsibility of the property owner, they must show 

evidence that the agricultural operation has been in place for the last 30 years; or was legally 
established with the appropriate permits. 

 
2. On building sites where the primary use is residential a Sea Cargo Container shall 

only be allowed if it is not visible from that portion of any road (whether public, private, 
and/or private road easement) that directly abuts the subject parcel.  If existing 
landscaping is used as screening, it shall be indicated on the building plans and 
photos shall be submitted as evidence (See next page for illustration only).  If fencing 
is used as screening, please see Section 6708 of the Zoning Ordinance for fencing 
regulations. 

 
3. On building sites of less than 2 acres (net) where the primary use is residential only 

one Sea Cargo Container is allowed, not exceeding 320 square feet and the container 
is only permitted for up to 180 consecutive days, starting from the date of permit 
issuance.  A demolition permit is required to confirm removal of the Sea Cargo 
Container. 

 On building sites of more than 2 acres (net) with a legally established primary use, a 
Sea Cargo Container(s) is allowed if it complies with the other requirements of 
Section 6162. 

 
4. Sea Cargo Containers must meet setback requirements for accessory structures.   
 
5. The Sea Cargo Container can only be used for storage. 
 
6. A Sea Cargo Container may be allowed in commercial and industrial zoned areas 

only if there is a legally established primary use on-site and all parking requirements 
are maintained. 

 
7. Sea Cargo Containers are allowed in all zones temporarily to store building materials 

during the construction pursuant to an active building permit.  If the building permit is 
expired, the Sea Cargo Container shall be removed with a demolition permit. 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/pds


 

County of San Diego, PDS, Zoning Division 
   REQUIREMENTS FOR PLACING A SEA CARGO CONTAINER ON A PRIVATE LOT 

Continued 

 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA  92123 ● (858) 565-5981 ● (888) 267-8770 
 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/pds 

PDS-726   (Rev. 01/12/2017)    PAGE 2 of 3 

Possible location of a Sea Cargo Container, because the container is not visible from abutting 
street.  (A street is a County road, State highway, public road, street or alley, or private 
thoroughfare or easement (or proposed private thoroughfare or easement shown on a recorded 
parcel map) not less than 10 feet in width which affords primary access to an abutting lot.) 

 
 
Possible location of a Sea Cargo Container, because the container is screened by an existing 
fence (see Section 6708 of the Zoning Ordinance for fencing regulations). 
A Sea Cargo Container can only be screened by existing landscaping (new landscaping does not 
qualify as screening).  

 
 

SFD
 Fence  

Sea Cargo 
Container 

Fence 

Fence 

SFD 

Sea Cargo 
Container 



 

County of San Diego, PDS, Zoning Division 
   REQUIREMENTS FOR PLACING A SEA CARGO CONTAINER ON A PRIVATE LOT 

Continued 

 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA  92123 ● (858) 565-5981 ● (888) 267-8770 
 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/pds 

PDS-726   (Rev. 01/12/2017)    PAGE 3 of 3 

8. The square footage of the Sea Cargo Container shall be added to the allowable 
combined square footage of all existing and/or proposed accessory structures 
pursuant to 6156.g. 

 

Lot Size (gross) 

Det. Accessory Structures  
in all Res, Ag & S92 Zones 

(formerly 6156.g and 6156.h) 

< 1/2 ac 

1,450 sf  
(only in zones subject to a Residential Use 
Regulation and in the S88 Use Regulations 

where residential uses occur) 

< 1 ac 2,000 sf 

1 ac  - <2 ac 3,000 sf 

2 ac - <4 ac 4,000 sf 

4 ac - <8 ac 5,600 sf 

8 ac - <12 ac 6,400 sf 

12 ac - <16 ac 7,200 sf 

16 ac or more 8,000 sf 

 
9. The exterior of every Sea Cargo Container shall be painted with one of the approved 

colors.  The color shall be indicated on the plot plan.  The following colors are 
approved: 

 
a. Flat, non-reflective dark green to match the surrounding area; 
b. Flat, non-reflective white (this color is typically limited to AG uses); 
c. Flat, non-reflective, tan to match the surrounding area; or,  
d. Other solid neutral color that matches the surrounding natural environment 

(applicant must provide pictures of surrounding area to show compliance) 
 
10. If you have an existing Sea Cargo Container that was legally placed on your parcel 

(with a building permit and before May 18, 2007) you are allowed to continue the use 
of the Sea Cargo Container as a non-conforming use for two more years.  At or before 
May 17, 2009, the Sea Cargo Container shall be removed from the parcel with a 
demolition permit or you have to obtain a new building permit and be fully in 
compliance with Section 6162 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

 
 
  



 

As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Long Beach does not discriminate on the basis of disability and, upon 
request, will provide reasonable accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services and activities. For efficient handling of information 
internally and on the internet, all documents and handouts, including interpretations and guidelines that have been previously issued, will be converted to 
this new format to allow flexibility and timely distribution of information to the public. Visit our website at www.lbds.longbeach.gov. 

1 of 2 

Information  
Bulletin  

DS-003
The City of Long Beach 

City of Long Beach  Department of Development Services 

Cargo Container Used as Storage 
Building and Safety Bureau – Planning Bureau  

333 W. Ocean Blvd, 4th Floor, Long Beach, CA 90802 
Phone (562) 570-6651  Fax (562) 570-6753 

Effective: 02-13-2008 
Revised:  02-13-2008 

 
The purpose of this Information Bulletin is to clarify pertinent sections of the Long Beach Municipal 
Code (LBMC), Title 21 Zoning Ordinance that regulates the use and location of transport cargo 
containers. Transport cargo containers, commonly used on ocean going vessels, may be used as 
container or incidental storage when all of the Zoning and Building Code regulations are satisfied. 
This Information Bulletin establishes the minimum conditions and requirements when the containers, 
if permitted by the Zoning Ordinance, may be considered as a piece of equipment and not a building 
for the purpose of building code regulations. It is not the intent of this Information Bulletin to address 
cargo containers located within the Port of Long Beach. If the use is permitted, applicants wishing to 
use the containers as incidental storage will need to obtain building permits for the containers. 
 
ZONING CODE REGULATION: 
 
LBMC Chapter 21.33 Industrial Districts states that outdoor storage containers used for the duration 
of more than 72 hours requires an approved Conditional Use Permit (CUP) when located in any 
industrial zone. No other zone within the City addresses the use of transport containers; therefore, the 
use of transport containers for storage purposes is not permitted except in industrial zones. 
 
In residential zones, transport containers are regulated similar to accessory buildings or structures. 
Pursuant to LBMC Section 21.31.245, accessory buildings or structures are allowed in residential 
zones provided that they comply with the established design standards as required by LBMC Section 
21.31.255, which prohibits the use of metallic or metallic-looking siding. This section does, however, 
allow an application for a Site Plan Review application to be filed to vary from the design standards. 
 
BUILDING CODE REGULATION: 
 
Where transport containers are permitted, either through the CUP or Site Plan Review process as 
required by the Zoning Ordinance, the containers may be considered a piece of equipment for 
building code purposes when all of the following conditions are satisfied: 
 
A. Plans, Specifications, and Restrictions 

 
1. A plot plan drawn to scale showing the location of all existing buildings and parking 

spaces on the lot, and the size and location of the proposed container(s) with respect to 
those buildings, parking and property lines is required. 

2. The containers shall be constructed of steel or aluminum with a minimum 14-gauge 
thickness except for a wood floor within the metal shell. 

3. The Department may deny the request of an incidental storage with a cargo container, if 
in the Building Official’s opinion, such a request creates a violation of the Long Beach 
Municipal Code or causes an unsafe condition for the occupants of adjacent buildings or 
property. 

 



 

 
 
As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Long Beach does not discriminate on the basis of disability and, upon 
request, will provide reasonable accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services and activities. For efficient handling of information 
internally and on the internet, all documents and handouts, including interpretations and guidelines that have been previously issued, will be converted to 
this new format to allow flexibility and timely distribution of information to the public. Visit our website at www.lbds.longbeach.gov. 

2 of 2 

City of Long Beach  Cargo Container Used as Storage Information Bulletin DS-003

 
B. Location and Size 

 
1. The containers shall be located at least 5 feet from a property line and 10 feet from a 

building where exterior opening occurs. 
2. The containers shall not be located so as to block, obstruct, or reduce any required 

exits, open spaces, windows, vent shafts, or “required” parking spaces (including 
access driveways) of the existing buildings on the lot. 

3. Each container shall not exceed 10 feet in height, 10 feet in width, and 40 feet in length, 
and shall have no wall openings except for an access door opening. 

4. Containers shall not be “stacked” on top of each other or joined in any manner. 
 
C. Miscellaneous Requirements 

 
1. The use shall be limited to incidental storage to an approved non-residential use and 

shall not be used to store hazardous materials unless approved by the Fire Department. 
2. The use shall not allow human occupancy inside the container. 
3. Containers that have been factory-built with any electrical, plumbing, heating or air 

conditioning systems shall not be connected to a power source. 
4. Containers shall be maintained in good condition and free of graffiti at all times. 

 
D. Disabled Access Requirement 

 
1. The use of the containers shall not allow human occupancy and is, therefore, exempt 

from Title 24, Part 2, of the California Code of Regulations, the State’s Disabled Access 
and Adaptability requirements. 



Chapter 18.61
STORAGE CONTAINERS

Sections:

18.61.010    Purpose.

18.61.020    Definitions.

18.61.030    Storage on residential use properties.

18.61.040    Cargo containers – Permitted locations.

18.61.050    Permit required – Development standards.

18.61.060    Current violations – Time to comply.

18.61.070    Conflicts.

18.61.080    Violations – Penalties.

18.61.010 Purpose.

The purpose of this chapter is to regulate the use of storage containers on residentially zoned and residentially

used properties in the city, which regulations are adopted to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, and

promote positive aesthetics in the city. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.020 Definitions.

A. An “accessory storage building” is:

1. A building originally constructed for use as an accessory building for the storage of materials and

equipment accessory to a primary use located on the property.

2. For purposes of this chapter, cargo containers, railroad cars, truck vans, converted mobile homes,

trailers, recreational vehicles, bus bodies, vehicles and similar prefabricated items and structures

originally built for purposes other than the storage of goods and materials are not accessory storage

buildings.

B. “Cargo containers” include standardized reusable vessels that were:

1. Originally designed for or used in the packing, shipping, movement or transportation of freight, articles,

goods or commodities; and/or

2. Originally designed for or capable of being mounted or moved by rail, truck or ship by means of being

mounted on a chassis or similar transport device. This definition includes the terms “transport containers”

and “portable site storage containers” having a similar appearance to and similar characteristics of cargo

containers. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.030 Storage on residential use properties.

A. Only accessory storage buildings defined in DPMC 18.61.020(A) shall be permitted as accessory storage

containers on property in any residential zone of the city, or on any property within the city the primary use of

which is residential. Cargo containers, railroad cars, truck vans, converted mobile homes, travel trailers,

recreational vehicles, bus bodies, vehicles, and similar prefabricated items and structures originally built for

purposes other than the storage of goods and materials are not permitted to be used as accessory storage

buildings on property zoned residential or on property the primary use of which is residential.

B. Notwithstanding the provisions set forth in subsection A of this section, the temporary placement of

Chapter 18.61 STORAGE CONTAINERS http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/DeerPark/html/DeerPark18/DeerPa...

1 of 3 6/29/17, 8:52 AM



transport containers and/or portable site storage containers on residentially zoned properties, or on properties

the primary use of which are residential, for the limited purpose of loading and unloading household contents

shall be permitted for a period of time not exceeding 30 days in any one calendar year.

C. Notwithstanding the provisions set forth in subsection A of this section, licensed and bonded contractors

may use cargo containers for the temporary location of an office, equipment, and/or materials storage structure

during construction which is taking place on the property where the cargo container is located, if the use of the

cargo container is authorized pursuant to a city building permit. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.040 Cargo containers – Permitted locations.

A. The placement of a cargo container as an accessory storage use is limited to the following zoning districts:

1. Central commercial (CC).

2. Commercial shopping center (CS).

3. Diversified (DC).

4. Light industrial (LI).

5. Business park (BP).

B. The placement of cargo containers is further limited to properties in the above-identified zones only if the

property upon which the cargo container is proposed to be located is not primarily used for residential

purposes. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.050 Permit required – Development standards.

A. A building permit is required prior to placement of a cargo container larger than 200 square feet in area,

ensuring effective anchoring/foundation according to the then most current edition of the International Building

Code. The application shall show the proposed cargo container is accessory to the permitted use of the

property and meets the placement criteria for the zone.

B. Cargo containers shall meet the setback requirements of the underlying zone.

C. Cargo containers shall not be stacked above the height of a single container device, except for placement

within the light industrial zone and on the back yard one-half of the lot or parcel.

D. Cargo containers shall not be used for any advertising purpose and shall be kept clean of all alpha-numeric

signage and writing.

E. As a condition of placement, cargo containers may be required to be fenced or screened from abutting

properties and/or rights-of-way pursuant to the provisions of the underlying zoning regulations.

F. Cargo containers shall be in an approved designated area and on the same property as the principal use

and be included in the calculation of overall lot coverage.

G. Cargo containers shall not occupy required off-street parking, loading or landscaping areas.

H. Materials stored within cargo containers are subject to review and approval by the fire district. (Ord. 901 § 1,

2011)

18.61.060 Current violations – Time to comply.

Chapter 18.61 STORAGE CONTAINERS http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/DeerPark/html/DeerPark18/DeerPa...

2 of 3 6/29/17, 8:52 AM



All owners of property within the city shall have 120 days from the effective date of the ordinance codified in

this chapter to bring the properties, which currently contain accessory storage buildings that are in violation of

the terms of this chapter, into full compliance with the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.070 Conflicts.

In the event any conflict exists between the provisions of this chapter and other currently existing provisions of

the Deer Park Municipal Code or other ordinances of the city, the terms and provisions of this chapter shall

take precedence and to the extent of any such conflict, the terms and conditions of any existing provisions of

the Deer Park Municipal Code or other ordinances of the city shall be and hereby are amended insofar as

necessary to conform to the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

18.61.080 Violations – Penalties.

Violation of this chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the procedures and penalties set forth in Chapter 18.108

DPMC as the same exists now or may hereafter be amended. (Ord. 901 § 1, 2011)

The Deer Park Municipal Code is current through Ordinance
967, passed December 21, 2016.
Disclaimer: The City Clerk's Office has the official version of the

Deer Park Municipal Code. Users should contact the City Clerk's

Office for ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited

above.

Chapter 18.61 STORAGE CONTAINERS http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/DeerPark/html/DeerPark18/DeerPa...

3 of 3 6/29/17, 8:52 AM











 Permit or Temp 

 Contact Poalo SRIA. 

 Semi trucks.   

 Seasonal structures ch 4‐7 

 Conditional com. Storage site or uncle bob site.   

 Graffiti 

 

 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft July 10, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Draft July 10, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
	Att3_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att4_Six Month Outlook
	Z-2017-06
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2017-06
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	CRA Map
	Photos
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	Combination Request
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments
	CRA Comments

	Z-2017-11
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2017-11
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Wetlands Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Applicant's Criteria
	Proof of Ownership
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	Z-2017-12
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2017-12
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of request
	Application
	Project narrative
	Proof of Ownership
	Boundary Survey
	About Camp Bow Wow

	Z-2017-13
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2017-13
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	CRA Map
	Photos
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	Boundary Survey

	Zoning_FLU Inconsistencies Discussion
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Clustering Discussion
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Spot Zoning_Rezoning Discussion
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Att2_Clean Ordinance
	Subdivision Roads and Site Plans Discussion
	Att1_Attachment
	Lakeshore.pdf
	LAKESHORE-1
	LAKESHORE-2
	LAKESHORE-3
	LAKESHORE-4
	LAKESHORE-5


	Storage Containers Discussion
	Att1_Attachment
	portablestoragebrochure.pdf
	TPSC_inside_med
	TPSC_outside_med



